
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City Council Regular Meeting 
September 5, 2013, at 7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 
 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Lucas will be held on Thursday, September 5, 2013, at 7 PM 
at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, at which 
time the following agenda will be discussed. 

Agenda 

Call to Order 
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Determination of Quorum 
Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizens’ Input 

At this time citizens who have pre-registered by filling out a “Request to Speak” sheet and have submitted 
the sheet to the City Secretary before the call to order will be allowed to speak on any matter other than 
personnel matters or matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed three minutes. No Council 
action or discussion may take place on a matter until such matter has been placed on a future agenda and 
posted in accordance with law. 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

Regular Agenda 

3) Discuss and Consider the approval of Exhibit A and Exhibit B 
for options of lease/purchase agreement between the City of 
Lucas and American National Bank for Fire Department 
equipment and authorize City Attorney to draft said agreement. 
[Jenkins] 

4) Discuss and Consider the schematic design of the Lucas Fire 
Station Expansion Project and authorize Staff to move forward 
into the design phase of the project. [Jenkins] 

Public Hearings 
The Public Hearing agenda is provided for the purpose of allowing citizens to ask specific questions 
regarding only the subject posted for the Public Hearing. Generally the Public Hearing is required by State 
Law and a record of those attending the Public Hearing is maintained as part of the official record of the 
proceedings. 

5) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider adopting the Tax Rate 
and levying the Ad Valorem Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2013 – 
2014 to provide revenue for the payment of current 
expenditures. (Proposed Tax Rate is 0.355616; Current Tax 
Rate is 0.374177) [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing 
was held at the  August 15, 2013 City Council Meeting] 
[Exum] 

6) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the proposed Operating 
Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013 and 
ending September 30, 2014. [Copy of proposed budget 
available at City Hall upon request and currently posted on 
the City’s website.  2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing 
was held at the  August 15, 2013 City Council Meeting] 
[Exum] 

7) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation 
of a property in Collin County, Texas, BEING A TRACT OF 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE L.P. TURNER SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 901 AND THE J. GRAY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT 349, SITUATED IN COLLIN COUTY, TEXAS, AN 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
Beginning at a point in the north line of Parker Road, said point 
being the southeast corner of Kirkland Estates West, an 
addition to the City of Lucas, Texas, according to the plat 
recorded in volume 10, page 74 of the Map Records, Collin 
County, Texas, in iron rod for corner; THENCE North 00°11’27” 
West along the east line of said Kirkland Estates West, a 
distance of 1,816.50 feet to a corner of said Addition, an iron 
rod for corner; THENCE North 89°00’00” east, a distance of 
298.50 feet to an iron rod for corner; THENCE South 0°15’52” 
East, a distance of 1,859.00 feet to a point in the North line of 
Parker Road, an iron rod for corner; THENCE North 82°52’15” 
West, along said line of Parker Road, a distance of 303.20 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 550,606 square 
feet or 12.64017 acres of land.  More commonly known as the 
3R property. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing was 
held at the  August 15, 2013 City Council Meeting]  
[Hilbourn] 

8) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation 
of a property in Collin County, Texas, BEING A 9.973 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS IN 
THE JOHN McKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596, 
BEING PART OF A CALLED 38.38 ACRE TRACT AS 
DEEDED TO J.C. AND OLLIE TOMBERLINE AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 595, PAGE 205 OF THE DEED 
RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, (DRCCT), AND 
BEING THE SAME TRACT OF LAND AS DEEDED TO 
ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. STEVENS AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 5476, PAGE 4796 DRCCT: 
BEGINNING at a point for comer in the center of a public road, 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

said corner also being the Northwest corner of said John 
McKinney Survey; THENCE North 89°22’24” East, with North 
line of said McKinney Survey, for a distance of 1170.76 feet to 
a point for corner; THENCE South 1°04’22” East, for a distance 
of 364.00 feet to a point for corner at a fence corner; THENCE 
South 88°47’24” West, partially with a fence line, for a distance 
of 1177.77 feet to a point for corner in the center of said public 
road; THENCE North, 376.00 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 434,444.9 square feet or 9.973 
acres of land, more or less or more commonly known as the 
Stevens property. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing 
was held at the  August 15, 2013 City Council Meeting] 
[Hilbourn] 

 
9) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the petition filed by D.R. 

Horton Homes requesting annexation of a parcel of land 
located on Stinson Road further described as Stinson 
Highlands Phase ll generally located at the intersection of 
Highland Drive and Inverness Lane, consisting of 43 lots, and 
66.1034 acres out of the John Grey Survey, ABS No. 349, 
Lewis P Turner Survey, ABS No. 901; George Gunnel Survey, 
ABS No. 352, Collin County, Texas. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st 
Public Hearing was held at the  August 15, 2013 City 
Council Meeting] [Hilbourn] 

 
10) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider an application request by 

Bank of America for site plan approval.  The property to be 
considered is known as Lot 2, Block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas 
Addition, located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas Road and 
Angel Parkway intersection. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public 
Hearing was held at the August 8, 2013 Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting] [Hilbourn] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

Regular Agenda 

11) Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the 
August 15, 2013 City Council Meeting. [Wingo] 

12) Discuss and Consider the approve the landscape plan for Bank 
of America, Lot 2, Block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, 
located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas Road and Angel 
Parkway intersection. [Hilbourn] 

13) Discuss and Consider the approval of the preliminary plat of a 
portion of the first phase for Inspiration Development, formerly 
known as the Hanover Property and Huffine Development. The 
parcels are part of the Leroy Farmer Survey ABS 334, Mark 
Morris Survey ABS 561, and Orpha Shelby Survey ABS 799. 
[Hilbourn] 

14) Discuss and Consider the approval of the preliminary plat for 
Ella Brooke Estates, Lots 1-3, Block A, being 8.823 acres 
situated in the James Grayum Survey, Abstract No. 354, City of 
Lucas, Collin County, Texas. [Hilbourn] 

15) Discuss and Consider the approval of an amendment to the 
Development Agreement between the City of Lucas and Liberty 
Bank amending Exhibit “B”, the approved site plan. [Hilbourn] 

16) Discuss and Consider Fire Department Staff work schedule 
plan. [Kitchens] 

 
17) Discuss and Consider the approval of a contract between the 

City of Lucas and Questcare Medical Services, P.A. for medical 
supervision of EMS activities and authorize the City Manager to 
execute said contract. [Kitchens] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

Executive Session 

The City Council may convene in Executive Session in accordance with the 
Local Government Code. All decisions regarding the discussion of the 
Executive Session must be made in Open Session. 

18) The City Council pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code may convene into Executive Session to 
conduct the annual review of the City Secretary. 

Regular Agenda 

19) Take any action as necessary from the Executive Session. 

20) Adjournment. 

As authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, the City 
Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda 
at any time during the meeting. 

Approval 

Approved by: Mayor Rebecca Mark, August 30, 2013. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on 
the bulletin board at Lucas City Hall by 5:00 p.m. on or before 
Friday, August 30, 2013, as required in accordance with 
Government Code §551.041. 

 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 7 
City Council Regular Agenda 
September 5, 2013 

This building is wheelchair accessible. Any requests for sign interpretive services 
or other special requests for assistance of the hearing impaired must be made 48 
hours in advance of the meeting. To make such arrangements, please call 972-
727-8999 or email secretary@lucastexas.us. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

LUCAS CITY COUNCIL  

Meeting Date September 5, 2013 

AGENDA ITEM:  
 Call to Order  
 Roll Call      Present  Absent 

Mayor Rebecca Mark              

Seat 1 CM Wayne Millsap           

Seat 2 CM Jim Olk            

Seat 3 CM Steve Duke              

Seat 4 CM Philip Lawrence             

Seat 5 CM Debbie Fisher             

Seat 6 MPT Kathleen Peele           

 

 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Informational Purposes 

 

City Manager Jeff Jenkins     

City Secretary Kathy Wingo      

Public Works Director Stanton Foerster    

Finance Manager Liz Exum     

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens        

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City Attorney Joe Gorfida, Jr.      

Administrative Assistant Jennifer Faircloth   

   

    

 



Memo from the City Manager regarding upcoming Council meeting September 5, 2013, at 7:00 p.m., in 
the City Hall Council Chambers. 
 
Item #3 
 
In the next year, we will need to purchase a new ambulance, backup ambulance, and some equipment needed 
for the new EMS services.  I have talked to three lease-purchase groups in this area, and I have provided a short 
spreadsheet of the options.  All three were competitive offers for short term six year lease/purchase financing.  
We did have the requirement that we could be able to resale one of the vehicles before the end of the lease-
purchase.  This provision was to give us flexibility, in case we need to sell the backup ambulance and purchase 
a different unit.  Two of the firms were okay with selling the ambulances prior to the end of the lease.  
 
I would recommend we use American National Bank.  We have a good track record with using them on our 
banking needs, and they are a local group.  Their terms even with the possible closing cost are similar or slightly 
less than the others.   
 
If you agree with their option, you will need to approve the exhibits and then authorize the City Attorney to 
draft the agreement, which he will return with at the next Council meeting.   
    
Item #4  
 
Our architect for the project, Doug Edney will be in attendance to present the new schematic design option.  
The building has been reduced in size, modified in design, and the roof design has been changed.  The price of 
the overall facility is under the $2.8 million Council set budget objective. The next stage is Design 
Development and then following this would-be construction documents and bidding of the project.  The 
estimator feels the quantity cost in the latest estimates are good to the end of 2013.   
 
Item #13 
 
This item involves the preliminary plat for the subdivision called Inspiration, formerly known as the Hanover 
tract.  The plat conforms to the City’s subdivision regulations.  This first phase is only partially in the city’s ETJ 
with a majority being located in Saint Paul and Wylie’s ETJ.  This item was approved at the last P&Z meeting.   
   
Item #16 
 
In our current work schedule, our employees work 8-5 with salaried employees working additional hours when 
necessary.  Due to the new EMS staff coming on board in October, we will need to allow other work schedules.  
Right now, the Chief recommends a 24-48 schedule, which is typically standard for EMS or fire personnel.  The 
change in schedule will make the operation functional and makes the schedule of work possible with 7 EMS 
employees.   
  
Item #17 
 
We are required to have a contract with a medical control group when we start on EMS services.  The medical 
control group provides needed certification training and medical oversight of the paramedics.  The cost for the 
program has been included in next year’s budget.   
 
 
 
 
 



Item No. 01 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Citizen’s Input. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action necessary. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 02 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:  N/A   Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Items of Community Interest. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action necessary. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda 

Request 



Item No. 03 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Jeff Jenkins    
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Discuss and Consider the approval of Exhibit A and Exhibit B for options of 
lease/purchase agreement between the City of Lucas and American National Bank for 
Fire Department equipment and authorize City Attorney to draft said agreement. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached Exhibit A and Exhibit B. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to… 
 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Comaparison of the Lease Purchase Ageements Terms for $375,000

Interest rate Term Payments Attorney Fees or down payment Title Collateral

American National Bank 2.29% 6 years 67,027$                up to $5,000 no

Government Capital 2.86% 6 years 68,172$                included no

Intergraged Vehicles & Equipment 3.87% 6 years 62,920$                $36,800 yes



New Ambulance $ 250,000.00 
Used Ambulance $   50,000.00 
Life Pac 15 $   48,000.00 
Stretcher $   18,000.00 
Contingency $     9,000.00

Total                              $  375,000.00





Item No. 04 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Jeff Jenkins    
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Discuss and Consider the schematic design of the Lucas Fire Station Expansion Project 
and authorize Staff to move forward into the design phase of the project. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to… 
 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



City of Lucas Budget Reduction Items Central Fire Station

Item 
Number Highlighted Revisions

 Amount of 
Savings 

1 Reduce facility size by 500 s.f  (87,500.00)$        
2 Delete sloped roofs, provide all low slope roof (120,000.00)$      
3 Delete reskinning existing facility with stone (70,700.00)$        
4 Delete masonry wall/gates for dumpster/generator/patio (34,000.00)$        
5 Provide stucco exterior on new facility vs. stone (31,000.00)$        
6 Use light gauge steel stud structure for new facility in lieu of steel frame (112,000.00)$      
7 Delete most window/door canopies (12,000.00)$        
8 Provide plastic laminate millwork vs. wood finish (18,000.00)$        
9 Delete New LED Monument Sign ‐ keep existing wooden sign (35,000.00)$        
10 Utilize existing concrete approach drives vs. replace with new (39,050.00)$        
11 Delete southern concrete drive, maintain existing gravel drive (46,000.00)$        
12 Miscellaneous Estimate Modifications/Revisions (107,153.00)$      

Sub total Estimated Construction Savings (712,403.00)$      

Reduce GC Overhead & General Conditions ‐ 8% (56,992.24)$        
Reduce GC's Fee ‐ 4% (30,775.81)$        

Reduce Design Contingency ‐ 5% (40,008.55)$        

TOTAL OF ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SAVINGS (840,179.60)$      

A/E Fee Reduction (79,817.06)$        
Owner's Cost Reduction (47,117.00)$        

TOTAL OF ESTIMATED SAVINGS (967,113.66)$      

Previously Estimated Total Project Budget 3,653,272.04$     

CURRENT ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET 2,686,158.37$     

Approved Budget 2,800,000.00$     

BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT 113,841.63$       

Wiginton Hooker Jeffry Architects 1 of 2 8/28/2013



City of Lucas Budget Reduction Items Central Fire Station

Item 
Number Miscellaneous Revisions

 Amount of 
Savings 

1 Leave existing facility on propane vs. convert to natural gas (3,500.00)$      
2 Delete Demolition of existing house ‐ By Owner (15,000.00)$    
3 Reduce amount of Acoustical Panels (7,500.00)$      
4 Delete built‐in floor mats at entrances (2,000.00)$      
5 Delete TV cabling ‐ By Owner (11,000.00)$    
6 Delete sound system ‐ By Owner (12,000.00)$    
7 No charge for irrigation meter (1,500.00)$      
8 No charge for domestic meter (3,000.00)$      
9 Delete Refrigerators ‐ By Owner (8,800.00)$      
10 Provide under counter icemaker vs. full size unit (3,000.00)$      
11 Delete Washer/Dryer ‐ By Owner (2,050.00)$      
12 Delete various Specialties/Accessories (7,600.00)$      
13 Floor/wall Finish Quantity Adjustments (26,878.00)$    
14 Sanitary Drain Quantity Adjustment (1,050.00)$      
15 Change Fitness Room walls from CMU to Stud (2,275.00)$      

Sub total Estimated Construction Savings (107,153.00)$   

Wiginton Hooker Jeffry Architects 2 of 2 8/28/2013



Owner's Cost for Fire Station 

Description Estimated Cost Budget Fiscal Year

Equipment  44,050$                                    
FFE(Fixtures, Furn., Equipement 42,000$                                      14/15
Washer/Dryer  2,050$                                        14/15
Refrigerators  3,500$                                        14/15
Landscape   40,300$                                    
Landscaping  40,000$                                      14/15
Irrigation Meter  300$                                           13/14
Misc owners cost 55,500$                                    
Ind. Construction Mat. Test 30,000$                                      13/14
Ind. Air Balance Test 15,000$                                      14/15
Ad for bid  3,000$                                        13/14
Demolition of existing house  7,500$                                        13/14
Domestic meter 300$                                          
Data/IT/Radio/Technology 59,425$                                     14/15

Total Owner Costs 199,275$                                  



08/29/2013

1

City of Lucas

1. At the July 2, 2013 Council Meeting the Schematic 
Design for the Central Fire Station Design was 
presented to Council.  The estimated Total Project 
Budget was approximately $3.66M with $3.03M for 
Construction, $380K for Design Fees and $247K for 
Owner Costs.

2. After discussion, Council voted to set the Total Project 
Budget at $2.8M.

3. This required minimum cost reductions of $860K.
4. Various cost cutting options were compiled and 

discussed resulting in a potential savings of $967K.
5. Current estimated Total Project Budget is $2.686M.
6. This leaves approximately $114K as a contingency.



08/29/2013

2

Item 
Number Highlighted Revisions

 Amount of 
Savings 

1 Reduce facility size by 500 s.f  (87,500.00)$        
2 Delete sloped roofs, provide all low slope roof (120,000.00)$      
3 Delete reskinning existing facility with stone (70,700.00)$        
4 Delete masonry wall/gates for dumpster/generator/patio (34,000.00)$        
5 Provide stucco exterior on new facility vs. stone (31,000.00)$        
6 Use light gauge steel stud structure for new facility in lieu of steel frame (112,000.00)$      
7 Delete most window/door canopies (12,000.00)$        
8 Provide plastic laminate millwork vs. wood finish (18,000.00)$        
9 Delete New LED Monument Sign ‐ keep existing wooden sign (35,000.00)$        
10 Utilize existing concrete approach drives vs. replace with new (39,050.00)$        
11 Delete southern concrete drive, maintain existing gravel drive (46,000.00)$        
12 Miscellaneous Estimate Modifications/Revisions (107,153.00)$      

Sub total Estimated Construction Savings (712,403.00)$      

Reduce GC Overhead & General Conditions ‐ 8% (56,992.24)$        
Reduce GC's Fee ‐ 4% (30,775.81)$        

Reduce Design Contingency ‐ 5% (40,008.55)$        

TOTAL OF ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SAVINGS (840,179.60)$      

A/E Fee Reduction (79,817.06)$        
Owner's Cost Reduction (47,117.00)$        

TOTAL OF ESTIMATED SAVINGS (967,113.66)$      

Previously Estimated Total Project Budget 3,653,272.04$    

CURRENT ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET 2,686,158.37$    

Approved Budget 2,800,000.00$    

BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT 113,841.63$        

ADMINISTRATION

CIRCULATION

EXISTING FIRE STATION

NEW FIRE STATION

MEP SUPPORT SPACE

NORTH

REDUCED 
BUILDING 500 S.F.



08/29/2013

3

LUCAS ROAD

CO
UN

TR
Y 

CL
UB

NORTH

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

REMOVE 
MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

REMOVE
NEW DRIVE

LANDSCAPE
REDUCTION

REMOVE LED
MONUMENT
SIGN

LUCAS ROAD

CO
UN

TR
Y 

CL
UB



08/29/2013

4

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

REMOVE MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE
REMOVE MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONEREMOVE LED 

MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE 
NEW DRIVE
REMOVE 
NEW DRIVE

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION

KEEP 
EXISTING 
DRIVE

KEEP 
EXISTING 
DRIVE

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

REMOVE MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE
REMOVE MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONEREMOVE LED 

MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE 
NEW DRIVE
REMOVE 
NEW DRIVE

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION



08/29/2013

5

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

REMOVE 
MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

REMOVE 
MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

REMOVE RESKINNING 
OF EXISTING BUILDING
REMOVE RESKINNING 
OF EXISTING BUILDING

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTIONSTUCCO IN LIEU 

OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE

KEEP 
EXISTING 
DRIVE

KEEP 
EXISTING 
DRIVE

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

REMOVE 
MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

REMOVE 
MASONRY 
ENCLOSURE

REMOVE RESKINNING 
OF EXISTING BUILDING
REMOVE RESKINNING 
OF EXISTING BUILDING

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE



08/29/2013

6

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT 
SIGN

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION



08/29/2013

7

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT SIGN
REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT SIGN

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION

STUCCO IN 
LIEU OF STONE
STUCCO IN 
LIEU OF STONE

REMOVE 
RESKINNING 
EXISTING BUILDING

REMOVE 
RESKINNING 
EXISTING BUILDING

REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT SIGN
REMOVE LED 
MONUMENT SIGN

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION
LANDSCAPE 
REDUCTION

STUCCO IN 
LIEU OF STONE
STUCCO IN 
LIEU OF STONE

REMOVE 
RESKINNING 
EXISTING BUILDING

REMOVE 
RESKINNING 
EXISTING BUILDING



08/29/2013

8

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE

REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS
REMOVE SLOPED 
ROOFS

STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE
STUCCO IN LIEU 
OF STONE



08/29/2013

9

Design Development is the next phase-
Completion 11/21/2013

Construction Documents 11/22/2013-1/30/2014

Permitting, Bid, and Award 2/3/2014-4/3/2014

Construction Phase estimated 4/4/2014-3/22/2015

Need to keep this timeline moving forward to obtain the best 
prices and to meet the upcoming needs of the department.  

Pricing is anticipated to increase significantly past the first 
quarter of 2014.

Construction Cost $2,187,473

Design Service Fees $299,409

Owner Costs $199,275

Total Project Cost $2,686,157



Item No. 05 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Liz Exum    
 
       Prepared by: Liz Exum    
 
Account Code #:  N/A    Date Prepared:  August 5, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $   N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider adopting the Tax Rate and levying the Ad 
Valorem Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014 to provide revenue for the payment of 
current expenditures. (Proposed Tax Rate is 0.355616; Current Tax Rate is 0.374177) 
[2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing was held on August 15, 2013] 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action needed at this time. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase

The City of Lucas will hold two public hearings on a proposal to increase total tax 
revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year by 4.34 percent 
(percentage by which proposed tax rate exceeds lower of rollback tax rate or effective 
tax calculated under Chapter 26, Tax Code). Your individual taxes may increase at a 
greater or lesser rate, or even decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of 
your property in relation to the change in taxable value of all other property and the tax 
rate that is adopted.

The first public hearing will be held on August 15, 2013 at 7:00 PM at City of Lucas, 
Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002.

The second public hearing will be held on September 5, 2013 at 7:00 PM at City of 
Lucas, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002.

The members of the governing body voted on the proposal to consider the tax increase 
as follows: 
FOR: Rebecca Mark, Mayor Kathleen Peele, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Wayne Millsap Jim Olk 
Steve Duke Philip Lawrence 
Debbie Fisher 

AGAINST: 

PRESENT and not voting: 

ABSENT: 

The average taxable value of a residence homestead in City of Lucas last year was 
$327,927. Based on last year's tax rate of $0.374177 per $100 of taxable value, the 
amount of taxes imposed last year on the average home was $1,227.03.

The average taxable value of a residence homestead in City of Lucas this year is 
$339,903. If the governing body adopts the effective tax rate for this year of $0.340811 
per $100 of taxable value, the amount of taxes imposed this year on the average home 
would be $1,158.43.

If the governing body adopts the proposed tax rate of $0.355616 per $100 of taxable 
value, the amount of taxes imposed this year on the average home would be $1,208.75.

Members of the public are encouraged to attend the hearings and express their views.



Item No. 06 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Liz Exum    
 
       Prepared by: Liz Exum    
 
Account Code #:  N/A    Date Prepared:  August 5, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $   N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the proposed Operating Budget for the Fiscal 
Year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014. [Copy of proposed 
budget available at City Hall upon request and currently posted on the City’s 
website.  This is the 2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing was held on August 15, 
2013] 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action needed at this time. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

 

ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
 

This budget will raise more revenue from property taxes than 

last year’s budget by an amount of $140,396, which is a 

7.01percent increase from last year’s budget.  The property tax 

revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this 

year is $124,424. 
 

The members of the governing body voted on the proposal to consider the budget 

as follows:  

 

FOR:  Rebecca Mark, Mayor Kathleen Peele, Mayor Pro-Tem 

 Wayne Millsap  Jim Olk 

 Steve Duke   Philip Lawrence 

 Debbie Fisher 

 

AGAINST: 

 

PRESENT and not voting: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

Property Tax Rate Comparison           2013-2014  2012-2013  

 

Property Tax Rate:                     $0.355616/100      $0.374177/100 

Effective Tax Rate:                    $0.340811/100      $0.367287/100                           

Effective Maintenance & Operations Tax Rate:  $0.234302/100      $0.250354/100 

Rollback Tax Rate :          $0.355616/100     $0.384009/100  

Debt Rate:            $0.101611/100     $0.112959/100 

 

Total debt obligation for City of  Lucas secured by property taxes: $612,711 



City of Lucas, Texas 

 PROPOSED BUDGET 

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 

 

 Mayor 

Rebecca Mark 

Mayor Pro-Tem: Kathleen Peele 
Councilwoman: Debbie Fisher 
Councilman: Wayne Millsap 

Councilman: Phil Lawrence 
Councilman: Jim Olk 

Councilman: Steve Duke  
 
 
 

 

 
 

Jeff Jenkins, City Manager 
Kathy Wingo, City Secretary 
Liz Exum, Finance Manager 

 



City of Lucas 

Citizens of Lucas 

Mayor and Council  

Municipal Judge City 
Attorney 

City 
Secretary City Manager 

Deputy 

Fire Chief 

Volunteers 

City Engineer  

Public Works  

Supervisor 

Utility Tech(s)  

Development  

Services 

Code 
Inspections / 

Facilities 

Permit Tech 

Code Enforce / 
Building 

Inspector 

Finance 
Manager  

 Utility Billing  
Admin Assist. 

Finance 
Assistant/ HR 

/Municipal  
Court 

Accounts 
Payable  

Administrative 

Assistant 



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Total Funds Budget Overview Pages 1-2

General Fund Balance Summary Page 3

Water Fund Balance Summary Page 4

Capital Fund Summary Page 5

Impact/Development Fee Summary Page 6

Tax Revenue Comparisons Page 7

OPERATING BUDGET

GENERAL FUND:

Revenue Pages 9-10

City Council Page 11

City Secretary Page 12

Administration/Finance Page 13

Public Works Page 14

Parks Page 15

Development Services Page 16

Fire Department Page 17

Non-Departmental Page 18

CAPITAL FUND:

Capital Improvements  Revenue Page 20

Capital Improvements - Water and General Fund Page 21

WATER FUND:

Revenue Page 23

Water Page 24

Water Debt Service Page 25

DEBT SERVICE FUND:

Debt Service Summary Page 27

TABLE OF CONTENTS



2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

GENERAL FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 1,446,880.86$          1,519,386.00$        17,800.00$            1,537,186.00$             1,515,138.92$       1,537,186.00$      1,694,628.00$         

OTHER TAXES 434,126.71$             799,045.00$            (40,560.00)$           758,485.00$                414,566.37$           758,485.00$         999,950.00$            
FINES & FORFEITURES 41,755.74$               24,985.00$              (297.00)$                 24,688.00$                   14,618.63$             24,688.00$            20,295.00$               
LICENSES & PERMITS 482,755.40$             290,820.00$            130,777.00$          421,597.00$                267,907.65$           421,597.00$         346,510.00$            
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 135,020.88$             149,513.65$            5,125.28$               154,638.93$                95,013.00$             154,638.93$         191,751.00$            
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 56,853.10$               69,785.30$              8,097.25$               77,882.55$                   73,620.56$             77,882.55$            79,000.00$               
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 239,586.57$             249,774.46$            52,969.75$            302,744.21$                112,563.25$           302,744.21$         275,384.00$            

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 2,836,979.26$          3,103,309.41$        173,912.28$          3,277,221.69$             2,493,428.38$       3,277,221.69$      3,607,518.00$         
 

WATER UTILITIES FUND
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 2,913,217.30$          2,912,700.00$        244,148.10$          3,156,848.10$             1,777,262.72$       3,156,848.10$      3,169,200.00$         
TRANSFER IN TO PAY OFF OLD UTILITY BONDS -$                            -$                               -$                        -$                           
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 56,180.68$               56,730.00$              (775.00)$                 55,955.00$                   4,195.10$               55,955.00$            56,400.00$               

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES FUND REVENUE 2,969,397.98$          2,969,430.00$        243,373.10$          3,212,803.10$             1,781,457.82$       3,212,803.10$      3,225,600.00$         

DEBT SERVICE FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 654,826.88$             664,672.00$            5,261.00$               669,933.00$                656,526.01$           669,933.00$         623,110.00$            

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE 654,826.88$             664,672.00$            5,261.00$              669,933.00$                656,526.01$          669,933.00$         623,110.00$            

COMBINED REVENUE TOTALS 6,461,204.12$          6,737,411.41$        422,546.38$          7,159,957.79$             4,931,412.21$       7,159,957.79$      7,456,228.00$         

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL 29,794.68$               56,769.94$              506.00$                  57,275.94$                   42,166.91$             57,275.94$            40,425.00$               
CITY SEC 115,770.70$             129,445.87$            (5,835.00)$             123,610.87$                74,782.30$             123,610.87$         128,805.15$            
ADMIN/FINANCE 320,857.62$             363,834.96$            (7,525.00)$             356,309.96$                217,651.42$           356,309.96$         398,559.89$            
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 303,343.35$             288,027.23$            (4,200.00)$             283,827.23$                176,623.99$           283,827.23$         293,150.56$            
PUBLIC WORKS 429,030.75$             532,992.58$            -$                        532,992.58$                213,555.96$           532,992.58$         885,890.78$            
PARKS 114,560.54$             138,206.02$            375.00$                  138,581.02$                80,009.93$             138,581.02$         106,339.70$            
FIRE 694,126.53$             752,990.32$            2,089.00$               755,079.32$                417,535.07$           755,079.32$         1,338,832.33$         
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 278,235.22$             342,462.00$            (11,800.00)$           330,662.00$                213,840.41$           330,662.00$         397,511.00$            

TOTAL  GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,285,719.39$          2,604,728.92$        (26,390.00)$           2,578,338.92$             1,436,165.99$       2,578,338.92$      3,589,514.41$         

WATER UTILITIES FUND  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,157,173.93$          2,453,025.17$        (108,476.00)$         2,344,549.17$             1,347,787.03$       2,344,549.17$      2,608,488.61$         

DEBT SERVICE
 WATER UTILITIES 519,914.50$             515,783.00$            -$                        515,783.00$                420,877.50$           515,783.00$         533,220.00$            
 GENERAL FUND 603,158.25$             606,273.00$            -$                        606,273.00$                486,159.50$           606,273.00$         612,710.00$            

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 1,123,072.75$          1,122,056.00$        -$                        1,122,056.00$             907,037.00$          1,122,056.00$      1,145,930.00$         
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,565,966.07$          6,179,810.09$        (134,866.00)$        6,044,944.09$             3,690,990.02$       6,044,944.09$      7,343,933.02$         

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 895,238.05$             557,601.32$            557,412.38$          1,115,013.70$             1,240,422.19$       1,115,013.70$      112,294.98$            

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUE SUMMARY

Page 1 08/29/2013



2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUE SUMMARYSUMMARY BY FUND

  GENERAL FUND
     REVENUE 2,836,979.26$          3,103,309.41$        173,912.28$          3,277,221.69$             2,493,428.38$       3,277,221.69$      3,607,518.00$         
     EXPENDITURES 2,285,719.39$          2,604,728.92$        (26,390.00)$           2,578,338.92$             1,436,165.99$       2,578,338.92$      3,589,514.41$         

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 551,259.87$             498,580.49$            200,302.28$          698,882.77$                1,057,262.39$       698,882.77$         18,003.59$              

WATER UTILITES FUND
     REVENUE 2,969,397.98$          2,969,430.00$        243,373.10$          3,212,803.10$             1,781,457.82$       3,212,803.10$      3,225,600.00$         
     EXPENDITURES 2,157,173.93$          2,453,025.17$        (108,476.00)$        2,344,549.17$             1,347,787.03$       2,344,549.17$      2,608,488.61$         
     DEBT SERVICE 519,914.50$             515,783.00$            -$                        515,783.00$                420,877.50$          515,783.00$         533,220.00$            

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 292,309.55$             621.83$                   351,849.10$          352,470.93$                12,793.29$             352,470.93$         83,891.39$              

DEBT SERVICE FUND-GENERAL
     REVENUE 654,826.88$             664,672.00$            5,261.00$              669,933.00$                656,526.01$          669,933.00$         623,110.00$            
     EXPENDITURES 603,158.25$             606,273.00$            -$                        606,273.00$                486,159.50$          606,273.00$         612,710.00$            

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 51,668.63$               58,399.00$              5,261.00$              63,660.00$                  170,366.51$          63,660.00$           10,400.00$              

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 895,238.05$             557,601.32$            557,412.38$          1,115,013.70$             1,240,422.19$       1,115,013.70$      112,294.98$            

Page 2 08/29/2013



CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 PROPOSED

FUND SUMMARIES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DEBT CAPITAL IMPACT TOTAL
GENERAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS FEES/RTR/COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,481,395.45$            423,369.00$                2,684,703.81$             702,988.61$                8,292,456.87$              

PROPERTY TAXES 1,694,628.00$            623,110.00$                2,317,738.00$              
OTHER TAXES 999,950.00$                999,950.00$                  
FINES & FORFEITURES 20,295.00$                  20,295.00$                    
LICENSES & PERMITS 346,510.00$                346,510.00$                  
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 191,751.00$                191,751.00$                  
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 79,000.00$                  79,000.00$                    
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 275,384.00$                -$                               275,384.00$                  
IMPACT FEES 100,000.00$                100,000.00$                  
RTR FUNDS LEFT TURN LANES 251,370.00$                251,370.00$                  
RTR FUNDS FM 1378 1,000,000.00$             1,000,000.00$              
COUNTY FUNDS 244,000.00$                244,000.00$                  
TRANSFER IN RESERVES -$                                 
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES -$                                 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,607,518.00$            623,110.00$                -$                               1,595,370.00$             5,825,998.00$              

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 40,425.00$                  40,425.00$                    
CITY SEC 128,805.15$                128,805.15$                  
ADMIN/FINANCE 398,559.89$                398,559.89$                  
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 293,150.56$                293,150.56$                  
PUBLIC WORKS 885,890.78$                885,890.78$                  
PARKS 106,339.70$                106,339.70$                  
FIRE 1,338,832.33$            1,338,832.33$              
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 397,511.00$                397,511.00$                  
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 380,000.00$                380,000.00$                  
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 232,710.00$                232,710.00$                  
CAPITAL PROJECTS RTR LEFT TURN LANES 30,000.00$                  30,000.00$                    
CAPITAL PROJECTS RTR FM 1378 1,500,000.00$             1,500,000.00$              
CAPITAL PROJECTS FIRE DEPT 277,000.00$                277,000.00$                  

-$                                 

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 3,589,514.41$            612,710.00$                277,000.00$                1,530,000.00$             6,009,224.41$              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 18,003.59$                  10,400.00$                  (277,000.00)$               65,370.00$                  (183,226.41)$                

ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,499,399.04$            433,769.00$                2,407,703.81$             768,358.61$                8,109,230.46$              
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES (768,358.61)$               (768,358.61)$                
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (433,769.00)$              (433,769.00)$                
MUNICIPAL COURT (28,473.81)$                 (28,473.81)$                   
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (2,407,703.81)$           (2,407,703.81)$             
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 4,470,925.23$            -$                               -$                               -$                               4,470,925.23$              

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 4,470,925.23$            -$                               -$                               -$                               4,470,925.23$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 455 455
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 15.2 15.2

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY 
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (1,794,757.21)$           (1,794,757.21)$             

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 2,676,168.03$            2,676,168.03$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 272 272
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 9.1 9.1

Page 3 08/29/2013



Page 4 08/29/2013CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 PROPOSED

FUND SUMMARIES - PROPRIETARY 

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CAPITAL IMPACT /DEVELOP TOTAL
WATER IMPROVEMENTS FEES PROPRIETARY

BEGINNING BALANCE RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED 4,001,771.83$           1,284,881.72$            -$                             5,286,653.55$             

WATER REVENUE 2,742,200.00$            2,742,200.00$              
WASTE WATER REVENUE 26,000.00$                 26,000.00$                   
TRASH REVENUE 401,000.00$               401,000.00$                 
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 56,400.00$                 56,400.00$                   
DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 437,078.25$               437,078.25$                 
IMPACT FEES 150,000.00$               150,000.00$                 
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES 150,000.00$               150,000.00$                 
TRANSFER IN FUND BALANCE - WATER 41,751.28$                  41,751.28$                   
TOTAL REVENUES 3,662,678.25$           191,751.28$               150,000.00$               4,004,429.53$             

EXPENDITURES

WATER 2,225,488.61$            2,225,488.61$              
TRASH 360,000.00$               360,000.00$                 
WASTEWATER 23,000.00$                 23,000.00$                   
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 350,000.00$               350,000.00$                 
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 183,220.00$               183,220.00$                 
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT 23,451.28$                 -$                             23,451.28$                   
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT 150,000.00$               150,000.00$                 
CAPITAL PROJECTS WF 1,476,633.00$            1,476,633.00$              

-$                               

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 3,165,159.89$           1,476,633.00$            150,000.00$               4,791,792.89$             

NET CHANGE IN BALANCE 497,518.36$               (1,284,881.72)$          -$                             (787,363.36)$               

ENDING BALANCE 4,499,290.19$           -$                             -$                             4,499,290.19$             
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES -$                             -$                               
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (350,000.00)$             (350,000.00)$                
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (205,125.00)$             (205,125.00)$                
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS -$                             -$                               
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 3,944,165.19$            -$                             -$                             3,944,165.19$              

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 3,944,165.19$            -$                             -$                             3,944,165.19$              

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 511 511
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 17.0 17.0

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (1,407,579.95)$          (1,407,579.95)$            

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER  GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 2,536,585.25$           -$                             -$                             2,536,585.25$             

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 329 329
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 11.0 11.0

Page 4 08/29/2013



2013-2014

CAPITAL WATER PROJECTS:

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,476,633.00$                                          
FY 2012/2013 IMPACT FEES (150,000.00)$                                            
2011 CO FUNDS (1,284,881.72)$                                         
FUND/RESERVE BALANCE TO FUND WATER (41,751.28)$                                              
TOTAL -$                                                            

CAPITAL ROADWAY AND GF PROJECTS:

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL FIRE DEPT ADDITION 277,000.00$                                              
RTR PROJECT TURN LANES 30,000.00$                                                
RTR PROJECT W LUCAS RD 1,500,000.00$                                          
ROADWAY IMPACT FEES (62,000.00)$                                              
2011 CO FUNDS (277,000.00)$                                            
RTR FUNDS TURN LANES (24,000.00)$                                              
RTR FUNDS W LUCAS RD (1,200,000.00)$                                         
COUNTY FUNDS (244,000.00)$                                            
TOTAL -$                                                            

PROPOSED BUDGET
CAPITAL FUND SUMMARY

Page 5 08/29/2013



FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 ACTUAL FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 

2011-2012 ACTUAL YTD AS OF 5/13 RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED

GENERAL FUND:

Beginning Balance General Fund (Restricted) 649,220.48$                                      649,220.48$                     649,220.48$                   649,220.48$                          702,988.61$          

Revenue

Roadway Impact Fees 41,885.07$                       60,000.00$                      72,368.13$            132,368.13$                          100,000.00$          
Roadway Impact Fees - Wal-Mart -$                                  -$                        
Total Revenues 649,220.48$                                      41,885.07$                       60,000.00$                      72,368.13$            132,368.13$                          100,000.00$          

Expenditures

Capital Projects -$                                                    7,450.50$                         78,600.00$            78,600.00$                            62,000.00$            

Total Expenditures 7,450.50$                         -$                                  78,600.00$            78,600.00$                            62,000.00$            

Revenues less Expenditures

General Fund Ending Balance (Restricted) 649,220.48$                                      683,655.05$                     709,220.48$                   (6,231.87)$             702,988.61$                          740,988.61$          

WATER FUND:

Beginning Balance - Water Fund (4,067,159.30)$                                 (4,067,159.30)$                (4,067,159.30)$               (4,067,159.30)$                     (4,898,488.30)$     

Revenue

Water Impact Fees -$                                                    60,932.80$                       100,000.00$                   71,322.00$            171,322.00$                          150,000.00$          
Development Fees -Sewer 437,078.25$                   (437,078.25)$         -$                                        437,078.25$          

Total Revenues -$                                                    60,932.80$                       537,078.25$                   71,322.00$            171,322.00$                          587,078.25$          

Expenditures

Capital Projects - Water -$                                                    194,794.83$                     1,693,114.00$                (1,428,533.00)$     264,581.00$                          1,476,633.00$       
Capital Projects- Sewer 342,037.14$                     672,620.00$                   65,450.00$            738,070.00$                          

Total Expenditures -$                                                    536,831.97$                     2,365,734.00$                (1,363,083.00)$     1,002,651.00$                      1,476,633.00$       

Revenues less Expenditures -$                                                    (475,899.17)$                   (1,828,655.75)$               1,434,405.00$       (831,329.00)$                        (889,554.75)$         

Water Fund Ending Balance (4,067,159.30)$                                 (4,543,058.47)$                (5,895,815.05)$               1,434,405.00$       (4,898,488.30)$                     (5,788,043.05)$     

Impact/Development Fee Summary

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 6 08/29/2013



CITY OF LUCAS PROPERTY TAX RATES

Property tax is by far the largest source of revenue in the City of Lucas General Fund.

Property tax is collected by Collin County and distributed to the City.  The City's property 

tax is budgeted  at a rate of .355616 for 2013.  The tax rate is 1.86 cents lower than previous tax years. 

Listed below is a table depicting the recent history of the City of Lucas property tax rate.

Tax Year O&M I&S Total

2004 0.258690 0.117910 0.376600

2005 0.243510 0.133090 0.376600

2006 0.248146 0.126854 0.375000

2007 0.244260 0.130740 0.375000

2008 0.250509 0.123668 0.374177

2009 0.252040 0.122137 0.374177

2010 0.247231 0.126946 0.374177

2011 0.257723 0.116454 0.374177

2012 0.261218 0.112959 0.374177

2013 0.254005 0.101611 0.355616

As you can see in the chart below, the property tax rate for the City of Lucas 

is very favorable in comparison to other cities within the area.

City O&M I&S Total

Wylie 0.590620 0.298280 0.888900

Sachse 0.568894 0.201925 0.770819

Princeton 0.489487 0.267445 0.756932

Anna 0.559367 0.090965 0.650332

Celina 0.475541 0.169459 0.645000

Farmersville 0.475922 0.221578 0.697500

Melissa 0.437740 0.172260 0.610000

Murphy 0.329495 0.240505 0.570000

Allen 0.405058 0.146942 0.552000

Prosper 0.316914 0.203086 0.520000

Parker 0.306403 0.070677 0.377080

Lucas 0.261218 0.112959 0.374177

Fairview 0.199606 0.160394 0.360000

Fiscal Year 2012 Tax Rates

Page 7



GENERAL FUND

Page 8 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

REVENUE ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13
PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PROPERTY TAXES
4011         PROPERTY TAXES 1,433,562.47   1,507,986.00               3,900.00                  1,511,886.00        1,495,775.70   1,511,886.00   1,676,628.00
4012         PROPERTY TAXES-DEL. 10,051.65         9,000.00                       11,000.00                20,000.00             16,428.86         20,000.00         15,000.00
4015         PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 3,266.74           2,400.00                       2,900.00                  5,300.00                2,934.36           5,300.00           3,000.00

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,446,880.86   1,519,386.00               17,800.00               1,537,186.00       1,515,138.92   1,537,186.00   1,694,628.00

OTHER TAXES

4101         SALES TAX 191,957.78       360,193.00                  (13,193.00)              347,000.00           152,463.73       347,000.00      489,060.00
4101-100 SALES TAX  STREETS 92,776.00                     (16,158.00)              76,618.00             27,807.53         76,618.00         125,970.00
4101-200 SALES TAX PROP TAX REDUC -                     92,776.00                     (16,158.00)              76,618.00             27,807.53         76,618.00         125,970.00
4102         FRANCHISE-ELECTRICAL 201,114.73       197,000.00                  (3,294.00)                193,706.00           157,325.02       193,706.00      197,000.00
4103         FRANCHISE-TELEPHONE 7,285.22           7,800.00                       (40.00)                      7,760.00                5,455.58           7,760.00           7,300.00
4104         FRANCHISE-CABLE 33,768.98         30,000.00                     7,153.00                  37,153.00             27,662.17         37,153.00         36,000.00
4105         FRANCHISE-GAS 16,000.00                     1,021.00                  17,021.00             14,063.30         17,021.00         16,000.00
4106         FRANCHISE-CABLE PEG 2,500.00                       109.00                     2,609.00                1,981.51           2,609.00           2,650.00

TOTAL OTHER TAXES 434,126.71       799,045.00                  (40,560.00)              758,485.00           414,566.37       758,485.00      999,950.00             

FINES & FORFEITURES

4202         COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND 736.70               425.00                          425.00                   262.21               425.00              400.00
4203         COURT SECURITY FUND 549.62               300.00                          15.00                        315.00                   195.33               315.00              250.00
4204         COURT COST-CITY 2,654.36           2,000.00                       29.00                        2,029.00                1,442.75           2,029.00           1,200.00
4205         TRAFFIC FINES 24,833.28         15,400.00                     (1,433.00)                13,967.00             9,206.03           13,967.00         13,200.00
4206         COURT COST-STATE 10,753.29         5,500.00                       1,000.00                  6,500.00                2,580.97           6,500.00           4,000.00
4208         STATE JURY FEE 732.81               400.00                          10.00                        410.00                   260.45               410.00              300.00
4212         JUDICIAL FEES-STATE 989.35               550.00                          5.00                          555.00                   351.58               555.00              500.00
4213         JUDICIAL FEES-CITY 109.92               60.00                             2.00                          62.00                     39.05                 62.00                 75.00
4215         OMNI STATE FEE 20.00                 100.00                          40.00                        140.00                   100.00               140.00              140.00
4216         OMNI MGMT FEE 6.00                   30.00                             20.00                        50.00                     30.00                 50.00                 50.00
4217         OMNI LOCAL FEE 4.00                   20.00                             10.00                        30.00                     20.00                 30.00                 30.00
4218         INDIGENT DEFENSE FEE 366.41               200.00                          5.00                          205.00                   130.26               205.00              150.00

TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES 41,755.74         24,985.00                    (297.00)                    24,688.00             14,618.63         24,688.00         20,295.00

LICENSES & PERMITS

4301         GEN CONTRACTOR REG. 6,750.00           4,500.00                       1,685.00                  6,185.00                4,685.00           6,185.00           5,775.00
4302         ELECTRICIAN REG. 3,750.00           2,500.00                       575.00                     3,075.00                2,325.00           3,075.00           2,625.00
4304         IRRIGATION REG. 1,515.00           1,800.00                       345.00                     2,145.00                1,665.00           2,145.00           1,890.00
4305         MECHANICAL REG. 2,545.00           1,700.00                       810.00                     2,510.00                1,910.00           2,510.00           2,310.00
4361         ZONING REQUEST 700.00               900.00                          (540.00)                    360.00                   -                     360.00              0.00
4362         SPECIFIC USE PERMITS -                     1,050.00                       1,050.00                1,050.00           1,050.00           1,103.00
4363         VARIANCE REQUEST 750.00               1,800.00                       1,800.00                1,800.00           1,800.00           1,890.00
4365         BLDG PERMITS-NEW HOMES 252,451.40       175,000.00                  98,000.00                273,000.00           171,477.70       273,000.00      220,812.00
4366         PERMITS SINGLE FAMILY REMOD 3,000.00                       (3,000.00)                -                          -                     -                     3,150.00
4367         BLDG PERMITS-ACC. 14,274.20         9,000.00                       4,101.00                  13,101.00             9,336.20           13,101.00         11,025.00
4368         BLDG PERMITS-REMODEL 4,939.30           2,600.00                       518.00                     3,118.00                1,983.25           3,118.00           2,730.00
4369         BLDG PERMITS-COMM. 102,484.50       25,000.00                     25,000.00             10,181.50         25,000.00         25,000.00
4371         ELECTRICAL PERMITS 900.00               500.00                          75.00                        575.00                   225.00               575.00              500.00
4372         PLUMBING PERMITS 2,350.00           1,800.00                       760.00                     2,560.00                1,810.00           2,560.00           1,950.00
4373         HEATING & A/C PERMITS 1,350.00           800.00                          400.00                     1,200.00                700.00               1,200.00           800.00
4374         FENCE PERMITS 3,496.00           2,000.00                       1,525.00                  3,525.00                2,475.00           3,525.00           2,500.00
4375         SWIMMING POOL PERMITS 18,625.00         10,000.00                     5,420.00                  15,420.00             10,665.00         15,420.00         10,000.00
4376         WEIGHT LIMIT PERMITS 48,675.00         32,000.00                     13,950.00                45,950.00             31,025.00         45,950.00         36,850.00
4377         ROOF PERMITS 600.00               600.00                          200.00                     800.00                   700.00               800.00              800.00
4378         SPRINKLER SYST PERMITS 5,825.00           4,500.00                       1,350.00                  5,850.00                3,825.00           5,850.00           4,500.00
4379         DRIVEWAY PERMIT 775.00               350.00                          300.00                     650.00                   350.00               650.00              400.00
4380         SIGN PERMIT 600.00               800.00                          50.00                        850.00                   850.00               850.00              1,000.00
4382         STORM WATER MGMT PERMIT 5,325.00           3,000.00                       1,325.00                  4,325.00                2,750.00           4,325.00           3,000.00
4390         PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 1,445.00           620.00                          1,890.00                  2,510.00                2,000.00           2,510.00           500.00
4391         BURN PERMITS 1,480.00           1,300.00                       938.00                     2,238.00                1,569.00           2,238.00           1,700.00
4395         HEALTH SERVICE PERMITS -                     3,000.00                       3,000.00                2,000.00           3,000.00           3,000.00
4398         MISC LICENSES & PERMITS 1,150.00           700.00                          100.00                     800.00                   550.00               800.00              700.00

  

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 482,755.40       290,820.00                  130,777.00             421,597.00           267,907.65       421,597.00      346,510.00

FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE

4611         FIRE SPRINKLER PERMIT 12,080.00         11,000.00                     7,090.00                  18,090.00             11,570.00         18,090.00         16,000.00
4612         COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 8,102.00           12,000.00                     (3,898.00)                8,102.00                6,076.50           8,102.00           12,000.00
4613         FIRE DEPT SVC AGREEMENTS 114,838.88       126,513.65                  1,933.28                  128,446.93           77,366.50         128,446.93      133,751.00
4614         AMBULANCE SERVICES -                     -                                 -                            -                          -                     -                     30,000.00
4616         DONATIONS -                     -                                 -                          

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 135,020.88       149,513.65                  5,125.28                  154,638.93           95,013.00         154,638.93      191,751.00

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4424         PLAT & REPLAT FEES 5,591.63           11,000.00                     4,032.00                  15,032.00             12,797.91         15,032.00         12,500.00

4425         RE-INSPECTION FEES 6,050.00           4,000.00                       750.00                     4,750.00                3,600.00           4,750.00           4,000.00

4426         FEES-BUILDING PROJECTS 5,125.00           2,500.00                       (500.00)                    2,000.00                2,000.00           2,000.00           2,400.00

4427         PUBLIC IMPRV/3% INSPEC 40,071.27         52,220.00                     3,780.00                  56,000.00             55,150.10         56,000.00         60,000.00
4497         PUBLIC INFO. REQUESTS 15.20                 64.30                             35.25                        99.55                     71.55                 99.55                 100.00
4498         MISC. FEES & CHARGES -                     1.00                               1.00                        1.00                   1.00                   

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 56,853.10         69,785.30                    8,097.25                  77,882.55             73,620.56         77,882.55         79,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

4911         INTEREST INCOME 9,173.04           6,000.00                       2,000.00                  8,000.00                5,492.31           8,000.00           9,000.00
4912         RETURN CK FEE -                     -                                 -                          -                     -                     0.00
4913         FUEL TAX REFUND 2,257.83           2,550.32                       2,550.32                2,550.32           2,550.32           2,200.00
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB 363.99               3,516.55                       3,516.55                3,516.55           3,516.55           0.00
4915         CHILD SAFETY INCOME 6,108.05           5,840.00                       406.81                     6,246.81                4,567.44           6,246.81           5,840.00

Page 9 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

REVENUE ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13
PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

4916         CREDIT CARD REVENUE 2,327.61           2,195.00                       40.61                        2,235.61                1,554.60           2,235.61           2,400.00
4931         RENTAL INCOME 27,600.00         32,400.00                     32,400.00             20,190.00         32,400.00         32,400.00
4980         PARK DEDICATION FEES 10,000.00         30,000.00                     35,000.00                65,000.00             64,000.00         65,000.00         45,000.00
4985         GRANT REVENUES 9,667.23           1,000.00                       1,000.00                1,000.00           1,000.00           0.00
4986         FOUNDERS DAY DONATIONS 506.00                     506.00                   506.00               506.00              0.00
4991         STREET ASSESSMENTS 1,300.00           1,300.00                       (510.78)                    789.22                   -                     789.22              0.00
4993         POSTAGE -                     -                          -                     
4994         CASH DRWR OVR/UND -                     -                          
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS 12.75                 1,779.09                       12,496.00                14,275.09             7,379.92           14,275.09         2,000.00
4996         TRANSFER IN -                     
4997         MISCELLANEOUS 4,927.10           2,000.00                       (163.89)                    1,836.11                1,806.11           1,836.11           2,000.00
4998         PILOT TRANSER IN 165,848.97       161,193.50                  3,195.00                  164,388.50           -                     164,388.50      174,544.00

 239,586.57       249,774.46                  52,969.75               302,744.21           112,563.25       302,744.21      275,384.00
 

***TOTAL REVENUES*** 2,836,979.26   3,103,309.41               173,912.28             3,277,221.69       2,493,428.38   3,277,221.69   3,607,518.00         

Page 10 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
CITY COUNCIL FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6100-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 100.00              97.83                          97.83                      97.83            97.83                    100.00                    

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 100.00              97.83                          -                97.83                      97.83            97.83                   

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6100-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,479.80          1,500.00                     1,500.00                998.40          1,500.00              1,500.00                
6100-202     POSTAGE -                    250.00                        250.00                    -                 250.00                 100.00                    
6100-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 314.20              500.00                        500.00                    63.82            500.00                 500.00                    
6100-228     MEETING SUPPLIES -                    150.00                        150.00                    -                 150.00                 75.00                      
6100-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE -                    100.00                        100.00                    -                 100.00                 100.00                    

 

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,794.00          2,500.00                    -                2,500.00                1,062.22       2,500.00              2,275.00                

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6100-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 1,623.84          2,500.00                     2,500.00                1,459.59       2,500.00              2,500.00                
6100-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 2,651.68          3,600.00                     3,600.00                2,051.40       3,600.00              3,600.00                
6100-323     CELL PHONE 840.06              1,200.00                     1,200.00                689.70          1,200.00              1,200.00                
6100-331     ELECTRICITY 1,170.33          1,500.00                     1,500.00                824.21          1,500.00              1,500.00                

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 6,285.91          8,800.00                    -                8,800.00                5,024.90       8,800.00              8,800.00                

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6100-444     FOUNDERS DAY 9,981.71          13,000.00                  506.00          13,506.00              9,894.33       13,506.00            15,000.00              
6100-440     BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 22.67                250.00                        250.00                    -                 250.00                 250.00                    
6100-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,170.97          2,500.00                     2,500.00                1,115.57       2,500.00              2,500.00                
6100-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS, & CDS 483.11              600.00                        600.00                    199.95          600.00                 600.00                    
6100-442     CONTINGENCY FUND 956.31              2,000.00                     2,000.00                -                 2,000.00              2,000.00                
6100-468     CITY COUNCIL FEES 9,000.00          9,000.00                     9,000.00                6,750.00       9,000.00              9,000.00                

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERV 21,614.77        27,350.00                  506.00          27,856.00              17,959.85    27,856.00           29,350.00              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8100-420    EQUIPMENT 18,022.11                  18,022.11              18,022.11    18,022.11            -                          

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -                    18,022.11                  -                18,022.11              18,022.11     18,022.11            -                          

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 29,794.68        56,769.94                  506.00          57,275.94              42,166.91    57,275.94           40,425.00              

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

Page 11 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
CITY SECRETARY FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PERSONNEL SERVICES  

6110-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 61,878.46       64,729.60           64,729.60          42,313.68     64,729.60        64,729.60           
6110-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 197.99             205.00                 205.00               191.00          205.00             205.00                 
6110-113     LONGEVITY PAY 304.00             355.00                 355.00               352.00          355.00             400.00                 
6110-122     TMRS 4,426.66          4,453.87             4,453.87            2,505.93       4,453.87          5,259.12              Rate change to 7.85%
6110-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,193.66          6,660.00             6,660.00            3,773.68       6,660.00          6,960.00              
6110-124     AFLAC 297.03             300.00                 300.00               164.08          300.00             300.00                 
6110-127     MEDICARE 945.47             947.40                 947.40               617.19          947.40             971.43                 
6110-129     ST DISABILITY 313.18             320.00                 320.00               185.13          320.00             320.00                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 74,556.45       77,970.87           -                    77,970.87         50,102.69    77,970.87       79,145.15           
 

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
 

6110-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 795.68             1,000.00             1,000.00            561.73          1,000.00          1,000.00              
6110-202     POSTAGE     5,190.00          7,000.00             7,000.00            4,000.00       7,000.00          7,500.00              

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 5,985.68         8,000.00             -                    8,000.00            4,561.73       8,000.00          8,500.00             

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6110-238     PRINTING & COPYING -                   250.00                 250.00               -                 250.00             250.00                 
6110-239     RECORDS MANAGEMENT 1,160.00          1,500.00             1,500.00            520.00          1,500.00          1,200.00              
6110-303     TELEPHONE 1,242.22          1,250.00             1,250.00            634.83          1,250.00          1,250.00              
6110-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 1,800.20          2,120.00             2,120.00            1,546.17       2,120.00          1,985.00              

6110-306     ADVERTISING/PUBLIC NOTICES 14,874.31       14,000.00           14,000.00          3,599.58       14,000.00        8,500.00              
6110-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,140.00          12,400.00           12,400.00          10,330.00     12,400.00        9,500.00              Website design/Franklin codify
6110-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,211.30          3,710.00             3,710.00            3,056.30       3,710.00          3,710.00              Laser fiche

6110-349     FILING FEES 981.00             1,500.00             1,500.00            216.00          1,500.00          2,000.00              

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 28,409.03       36,730.00           -                    36,730.00         19,902.88    36,730.00       28,395.00           

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6110-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 220.00             245.00                 40.00                285.00               90.00            285.00             265.00                 TMCA/IIMC/Lonestar chapter
6110-445     ELECTIONS 6,462.91          6,000.00             (5,875.00)         125.00               125.00          125.00             12,000.00           November and May Elections
6110-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 136.63             500.00                 500.00               -                 500.00             500.00                 

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 6,819.54         6,745.00             (5,835.00)         910.00               215.00          910.00             12,765.00           

CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -                   -                       -                    -                     -                -                    -                       

TOTAL CITY SECRETARY 115,770.70     129,445.87        (5,835.00)         123,610.87       74,782.30    123,610.87     128,805.15         

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 12 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PERSONNEL SERVICES  

6200-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  111,291.07      115,573.80           115,573.80                   75,206.46     115,573.80          115,573.80        
6200-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 33,748.59        46,920.00             46,920.00                     23,144.02     46,920.00            72,696.00          Includes full time AP position
6200-103     SALARIES - PART - TIME 35,423.80        37,740.00             37,740.00                     26,511.83     37,740.00            27,417.00          Includes Part time court clerk
6200-111     OVERTIME 64.95                100.00                   (100.00)             -                                 -                  -                        100.00                
6200-112     WORKERS' COMP  527.23              545.00                   545.00                           507.77           545.00                 545.00                
6200-113     LONGEVITY PAY  670.40              855.00                   855.00                           852.80           855.00                 1,035.20             
6200-122     TMRS   12,033.20        12,724.61             12,724.61                     7,043.67        12,724.61            15,289.64          Rate change to 7.85%
6200-123     GROUP INSURANCE   18,438.58        27,015.00             (6,615.00)          20,400.00                     11,883.04     20,400.00            27,960.00          
6200-124     AFLAC 1,037.40           1,140.00                1,140.00                       609.31           1,140.00              1,140.00             
6200-127     MEDICARE  2,644.93           2,832.80                150.00              2,982.80                       1,832.19        2,982.80              3,013.25             
6200-129     ST DISABILITY 814.38              850.00                   850.00                           511.77           850.00                 850.00                
6200-133     TELEPHONE ALLOWANCE 900.00              900.00                   900.00                           600.00           900.00                 900.00                
6200-141     CAR ALLOWANCE  2,400.00           2,400.00                2,400.00                       1,750.00        2,400.00              2,400.00             

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 219,994.53      249,596.21           (6,565.00)         243,031.21                   150,452.86   243,031.21         268,919.89        

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6200-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,489.62           4,000.00                4,000.00                       1,838.50        4,000.00              4,000.00             
6200-202     POSTAGE 1,561.54           2,000.00                2,000.00                       357.76           2,000.00              2,000.00             
6200-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 197.50              400.00                   400.00                           -                  400.00                 400.00                
6200-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 1,490.96           2,500.00                2,500.00                       1,063.05        2,500.00              2,500.00             
6200-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 239.41              300.00                   300.00                           -                  300.00                 300.00                
6200-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPLIES 30.83                100.00                   100.00                           -                  100.00                 100.00                

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 7,009.86          9,300.00               -                     9,300.00                       3,259.31       9,300.00              9,300.00            

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6200-238     PRINTING & COPYING -                     300.00                   300.00                           -                  300.00                 350.00                
6200-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 9,600.00           10,750.00             10,750.00                     6,470.00        10,750.00            11,500.00          
6200-303     TELEPHONE 2,257.55           2,800.00                2,800.00                       1,538.74        2,800.00              2,800.00             
6200-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 9,244.84           10,250.00             10,250.00                     9,847.02        10,250.00            10,800.00          Incl 5% increase/Incode/Tyler
6200-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 6,891.77           8,850.00                8,850.00                       2,597.72        8,850.00              10,165.00          Includes Incode Court Training
6200-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,640.00           5,325.00                5,325.00                       2,250.00        5,325.00              10,800.00          Brinson Benefits $7.8 K/SW Securities
6200-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,029.46           3,400.00                3,400.00                       1,833.41        3,400.00              3,400.00             
6200-318     TAX COLLECTION 1,758.00           1,776.75                1,776.75                       1,776.75        1,776.75              2,000.00             
6200-319     CENTRAL APPRAISAL FEE 12,952.56        14,287.00             14,287.00                     7,141.82        14,287.00            15,825.00          
6200-321     STATE COMPTROLLER (CT FEES) 11,770.89        9,000.00                (1,000.00)          8,000.00                       2,062.40        8,000.00              13,000.00          
6200-321.1 OMNI COURT FEES 12.00                -                          30.00                 30.00                             -                  30.00                    
6200-322     CONTRACTS 6,000.00           6,000.00                6,000.00                       2,500.00        6,000.00              6,000.00             
6200-323     CELL PHONE -                     -                                 
6200-324     INMATE BOARDING 139.58              1,000.00                1,000.00                       488.53           1,000.00              400.00                
6200-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 15,742.32        18,150.00             18,150.00                     18,146.84     18,150.00            18,150.00          
6200-331     ELECTRICITY 2,369.59           3,700.00                3,700.00                       1,237.14        3,700.00              3,700.00             
6200-333     UTILITIES, WATER 415.36              500.00                   500.00                           137.84           500.00                 500.00                

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 84,823.92        96,088.75             (970.00)             95,118.75                     58,028.21     95,118.75            109,390.00        

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6200-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,435.68           1,500.00                1,500.00                       698.70           1,500.00              1,500.00             
6200-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 3,173.58           4,100.00                4,100.00                       3,815.80        4,100.00              4,200.00             TMCCP/LCS/TCM/ICMA/GFOA/TML

GFOAT/TCCA/SRGI/NCTCOG/SAM'S
6200-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING -                     200.00                   200.00                           35.00             200.00                 200.00                
6200-445     CHILD SAFETY EXPENSE 398.50              1,000.00                1,000.00                       293.83           1,000.00              1,000.00             
6200-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 71.00                150.00                   150.00                           -                  150.00                 150.00                
6200-497     CREDIT CARD FEES 1,809.45           1,600.00                1,600.00                       767.71           1,600.00              1,600.00             
6200-498     MISCELLANEOUS 300.00              300.00                   10.00                 310.00                           300.00           310.00                 300.00                

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 7,188.21          8,850.00               10.00                8,860.00                       5,911.04       8,860.00              8,950.00            

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8200-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES 1,841.10           -                                  -                                 2,000.00             REPLACEMENT DESK
8200-415     OFFICE EQUIPMENT -                                 -                        -                       
8200-433     SIGNS & MARKINGS -                     -                                 -                        -                       
8200-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & NON PRINT -                                 -                        -                       
8200-452     HARDWARE & TELECOMM -                     -                                 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,841.10          -                         -                     -                                 -                  -                        2,000.00            

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 320,857.62      363,834.96           (7,525.00)         356,309.96                   217,651.42   356,309.96         398,559.89        

Page 13 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13
PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6210-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 33,404.80        36,883.20                36,883.20             24,601.03     36,883.20        36,883.20               
6210-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 119,853.38     129,272.00              129,272.00           84,524.00     129,272.00      129,272.00            
6210-111     OVERTIME -                    1,000.00                  1,000.00               1,000.00           1,000.00                 
6210-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 5,139.19          5,305.00                  5,305.00               4,942.60        5,305.00           5,298.82                 
6210-113     LONGEVITY 773.60             990.00                      990.00                   980.80           990.00              1,063.20                 
6210-122     TMRS 10,463.92        11,233.07                11,233.07             6,338.33        11,233.07        13,298.20               Rate change to 7.85%
6210-123     GROUP INSURANCE 25,146.00        28,944.00                28,944.00             15,751.75     28,944.00        30,624.00               
6210-124     AFLAC 1,174.62          1,320.00                  1,320.00               674.56           1,320.00           1,320.00                 
6210-127     MEDICARE 2,220.41          2,410.31                  2,410.31               1,587.45        2,410.31           2,456.36                 
6210-129     ST DISABILITY 1,002.76          1,005.00                  1,005.00               428.55           1,005.00           1,005.00                 
6210-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 1,200.00          1,200.00                  1,200.00               600.00           1,200.00           1,200.00                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 200,378.68     219,562.58              -                  219,562.58          140,429.07   219,562.58      223,420.78            

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6210-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 256.27             400.00                      400.00                   192.79           400.00              400.00                    
6210-202     POSTAGE 8.60                  60.00                        60.00                     (8.60)              60.00                60.00                       
6210-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 131.56             700.00                      700.00                   -                  700.00              700.00                    
6210-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,367.38          2,400.00                  2,400.00               809.23           2,400.00           2,400.00                 
6210-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 10,456.36        12,000.00                12,000.00             5,991.04        12,000.00        12,000.00               
6210-208     MINOR APPARATUS 1,000.00          1,000.00                  1,000.00               569.98           1,000.00           1,000.00                 
6210-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 1,400.00          1,400.00                  1,400.00               845.44           1,400.00           1,400.00                 
6210-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES 69.93               100.00                      100.00                   -                  100.00              100.00                    
6210-214     CLEANING SUPPLIES -                    2,000.00                  2,000.00               -                  2,000.00           2,000.00                 
6210-223     SAND/DIRT 499.80             500.00                      500.00                   (46.24)            500.00              500.00                    
6210-224     ASPHALT/BASE/CONC/CULVERT 5,596.51          25,000.00                25,000.00             4,398.17        25,000.00        25,000.00               
   

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 21,786.41       45,560.00                -                  45,560.00             12,751.81     45,560.00        45,560.00              

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6210-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 3,306.50          3,000.00                  3,000.00               729.80           3,000.00           3,000.00                 
6210-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2,794.08          4,800.00                  4,800.00               3,158.48        4,800.00           4,800.00                 
6210-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,884.65          7,000.00                  7,000.00               1,118.16        7,000.00           7,000.00                 
6210-234     WASTE DISPOSAL -                    2,000.00                  2,000.00               875.00           2,000.00           2,000.00                 
6210-298     MAINTENANCE & PARTS - MISC 886.38             2,000.00                  2,000.00               304.06           2,000.00           2,000.00                 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 11,871.61       18,800.00                -                  18,800.00             6,185.50       18,800.00        18,800.00              

PURCHASED SERVICES

6210-303     TELEPHONE 3,078.54          3,100.00                  3,100.00               1,599.08        3,100.00           3,200.00                 
6210-307     TRAVEL/TRAINING 1,500.35          1,500.00                  1,500.00               352.90           1,500.00           1,500.00                 
6210-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,572.50          6,000.00                  (1,300.00)       4,700.00               2,000.00        4,700.00           6,000.00                 
6210-311     ENGINEERING FEES -                    3,000.00                  3,000.00               -                  3,000.00           3,000.00                 
6210-322     CONTRACTS, OTHER 1,642.80          1,800.00                  1,800.00               958.30           1,800.00           1,800.00                 
6210-323     CELL PHONE 3,076.04          3,500.00                  3,500.00               1,728.05        3,500.00           3,500.00                 
6210-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 4,969.78          9,000.00                  9,000.00               2,517.67        9,000.00           9,000.00                 
6210-332     DRAINAGE -                    -                            -                         -                  
6210-334     STREET LIGHTING 16,323.03        18,000.00                18,000.00             9,340.71        18,000.00        18,000.00               
6210-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 81.21               500.00                      500.00                   -                  500.00              500.00                    
6210-349     PLAT COST -                    -                            -                         -                  

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 33,244.25       46,400.00                (1,300.00)      45,100.00             18,496.71     45,100.00        46,500.00              

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6210-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 199.41             200.00                      200.00                   133.86           200.00              200.00                    
6210-444     EMPLOYEE SCREENING -                    175.00                      175.00                   -                  175.00              175.00                    
6210-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 235.00             235.00                      235.00                   235.00           235.00              235.00                    

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 434.41             610.00                      -                  610.00                  368.86           610.00              610.00                    

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8210-301     IMROVEMENTS ROADS 92,195.84        185,060.00              185,060.00           26,363.57     185,060.00      500,000.00            $25K White Rock Trail/$126K from Sales tax
8210-411     FURNITURE -                         
8210-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 638.24             2,000.00                  2,000.00               -                  2,000.00           2,000.00                 
8210-420     EQUIPMENT 53,481.31        -                            -                         -                  
8210-421     VEHICHLES -                            -                         -                  -                     31,000.00               Replacement 2000 Chevy Pickup
8210-433     SIGNS & MARKINGS 15,000.00        15,000.00                15,000.00             8,960.44        15,000.00        18,000.00               
8210-452     COMPUTERS -                    -                            1,300.00        1,300.00               1,300.00           -                           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 161,315.39     202,060.00              1,300.00        203,360.00          35,324.01     203,360.00      551,000.00            

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 429,030.75     532,992.58              -                  532,992.58          213,555.96   532,992.58      885,890.78            

Page 14 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
PARKS DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6211-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 30,680.00       33,280.00                        33,280.00                   21,760.00    33,280.00        33,280.00               
6211-103     SALARIES - TEMP PART - TIME 10,914.75       17,595.00                        17,595.00                   2,119.01       17,595.00        17,595.00               
6211-111     OVERTIME -                   500.00                             500.00                         500.00             500.00                     
6211-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 1,123.60         1,160.00                          1,160.00                     1,080.76       1,160.00          1,160.00                 
6211-113     LONGEVITY 80.00               130.00                             130.00                         128.00          130.00             176.00                     
6211-122     TMRS 2,097.84         2,277.32                          2,277.32                     1,288.94       2,277.32          2,703.92                 Rate change to 7.85%
6211-123     GROUP INSURANCE 5,759.68         6,660.00                          6,660.00                     3,617.21       6,660.00          6,960.00                 
6211-124     AFLAC 274.25             300.00                             300.00                         157.27          300.00             300.00                     
6211-127     MEDICARE 576.64             838.70                             838.70                         330.00          838.70             764.78                     
6211-129     ST DISABILITY 135.40             150.00                             150.00                         85.55            150.00             150.00                     

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 51,642.16       62,891.02                       -          62,891.02                   30,566.74    62,891.02       63,589.70               

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6211-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 785.97             800.00                             800.00                         124.85          800.00             800.00                     
6211-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 5,661.84         6,000.00                          6,000.00                     1,849.10       6,000.00          6,000.00                 
6211-208     MINOR APPARATUS 763.48             1,000.00                          1,000.00                     588.80          1,000.00          1,000.00                 
6211-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 107.47             350.00                             350.00                         149.95          350.00             350.00                     
6211-212     CHEMICALS 3,256.08         3,500.00                          3,500.00                     1,598.56       3,500.00          8,500.00                 More Fertilizer to maintain park improv
6211-223     SOIL PREP 980.04             1,500.00                          1,500.00                     593.45          1,500.00          6,500.00                 Materials to treat 3 ballfields

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 11,554.88       13,150.00                       -          13,150.00                   4,904.71      13,150.00       23,150.00               

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6211-229     MAINT & PARTS 3,000.00         3,500.00                          3,500.00                     2,487.89       3,500.00          3,500.00                 
6211-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 490.64             800.00                             800.00                         432.97          800.00             800.00                     
6211-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,995.40         2,500.00                          2,500.00                     1,234.37       2,500.00          2,500.00                 

-          

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 5,486.04         6,800.00                          -          6,800.00                     4,155.23      6,800.00          6,800.00                 

PURCHASED SERVICES

6211-307     TRAVEL/TRAINING 250.14             250.00                             250.00                         100.19          250.00             1,000.00                 Texas Turf Grass Assoc Dallas Conf
6211-322     CONTRACTS OTHER (SEPTIC) -                   500.00                             500.00                         -                 500.00             500.00                     
6211-323     CELL PHONE 433.77             565.00                             565.00                         270.22          565.00             1,000.00                 
6211-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 1,259.71         1,500.00                          1,500.00                     812.35          1,500.00          1,500.00                 
6211-333     UTILITIES, WATER 15,174.09       8,000.00                          8,000.00                     1,976.44       8,000.00          8,000.00                 
6211-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 500.00             500.00                             500.00                         130.00          500.00             500.00                     

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 17,617.71       11,315.00                       -          11,315.00                   3,289.20      11,315.00       12,500.00               

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6211-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 100.00             100.00                             100.00                         50.00            100.00             100.00                     
6211-444     EMPLOYEE SCREENING 35.00               100.00                             100.00                         35.00            100.00             100.00                     
6211-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 12.52               100.00                             100.00                         25.04            100.00             100.00                     

  

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 147.52             300.00                             -          300.00                         110.04          300.00             300.00                     

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8211-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 1,702.39         2,000.00                          2,000.00                     219.99          2,000.00          
8211-420      EQUIPMENT 24,909.84       31,805.90                        31,805.90                   31,371.80    31,805.90        

8211-421     VEHICLES -                   -                               -                 
8211-498     MISC - LANDSCAPING 1,500.00         9,944.10                          375.00    10,319.10                   5,392.22       10,319.10        

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 28,112.23       43,750.00                       375.00    44,125.00                   36,984.01    44,125.00       -                           

TOTAL PARKS DEPARTMENT 114,560.54     138,206.02                     375.00    138,581.02                 80,009.93    138,581.02     106,339.70             

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 15 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6212-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 110,976.00        114,325.12             114,325.12            74,732.00     114,325.12       114,325.12          
6212-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 65,231.32          69,888.00               69,888.00              45,696.04     69,888.00          69,888.00            
6212-106     CERTIFICATION FEES 450.00                600.00                     600.00                    400.00           600.00               600.00                  
6212-111     OVERTIME -                       250.00                     (100.00)                    150.00                    150.00               250.00                  
6212-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 1,188.03             1,230.00                  1,230.00                 1,145.97        1,230.00            1,230.00               
6212-113     LONGEVITY PAY 472.00                605.00                     605.00                    592.00           605.00               796.00                  
6212-122     TMRS 12,114.92          12,514.32               12,514.32              7,155.65        12,514.32          14,966.86            Rate change to 7.85%
6212-123     GROUP INSURANCE 23,480.72          26,280.00               100.00                     26,380.00              15,673.47     26,380.00          27,840.00            
6212-124     AFLAC 1,096.57             1,200.00                  1,200.00                 656.32           1,200.00            1,200.00               
6212-127     MEDICARE 2,537.69             2,714.79                  (70.00)                      2,644.79                 1,692.81        2,644.79            2,764.58               
6212-129     ST DISABILITY 785.22                835.00                     70.00                       905.00                    516.18           905.00               835.00                  
6212-131     UNEMPLOYMENT 1,417.42             -                            -                           -                  -                         

 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 219,749.89        230,442.23             -                            230,442.23            148,260.44   230,442.23       234,695.56          

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6212-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,979.67             3,350.00                  3,350.00                 2,610.81        3,350.00            3,500.00               
6212-202     POSTAGE 398.42                500.00                     500.00                    45.40             500.00               500.00                  
6212-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS -                       350.00                     350.00                    350.00               350.00                  
6212-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 244.00                750.00                     (250.00)                    500.00                    10.71             500.00               750.00                  
6212-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 680.41                1,000.00                  1,000.00                 119.94           1,000.00            1,200.00               
6212-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 5,683.32             7,000.00                  7,000.00                 3,301.11        7,000.00            7,000.00               
6212-213     SIGNS,FLAGS,LOGOS 894.00                -                            -                           -                  
6212-228     MEETING SUPPLIES -                       -                            -                           -                  -                      

  

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 10,879.82          12,950.00               (250.00)                    12,700.00              6,087.97        12,700.00          13,300.00            

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6212-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,027.88             2,000.00                  2,000.00                 239.71           2,000.00            4,200.00               
. .

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,027.88            2,000.00                 -                            2,000.00                239.71           2,000.00            4,200.00              

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6212-238     PRINTING & COPYING 500.00                500.00                     (250.00)                    250.00                    -                  250.00               
6212-303     TELEPHONE 3,539.15             3,600.00                  3,600.00                 1,831.68        3,600.00            3,600.00               
6212-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINTENANCE 1,409.00             1,500.00                  1,500.00                 1,277.26        1,500.00            1,500.00               
6212-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 4,998.33             6,000.00                  6,000.00                 4,950.61        6,000.00            8,000.00               
6212-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 28,300.00          10,000.00               (2,500.00)                7,500.00                 2,700.00        7,500.00            15,000.00            
6212-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS -                       100.00                     100.00                    -                  100.00               100.00                  
6212-323     CELL PHONE 2,013.90             2,320.00                  2,320.00                 1,171.46        2,320.00            2,320.00               
6212-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC -                           
6212-349     FILING FEES 1,500.00             1,000.00                  1,000.00                 194.50           1,000.00            1,000.00               

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 42,260.38          25,020.00               (2,750.00)                22,270.00              12,125.51     22,270.00         31,520.00            

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6212-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 385.54                400.00                     400.00                    178.95           400.00               400.00                  
6212-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 1,947.29             2,040.00                  2,040.00                 210.00           2,040.00            2,465.00               
6212-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 35.00                  120.00                     120.00                    100.00           120.00               120.00                  
6212-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 567.23                1,200.00                  1,200.00                 15.31             1,200.00            1,200.00               
6212-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 551.41                700.00                     700.00                    184.87           700.00               750.00                  
6212-452     STORM WATER MGMT EXPENSE 1,951.80             3,000.00                  3,000.00                 1,451.23        3,000.00            3,000.00               

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 5,438.27            7,460.00                 -                            7,460.00                2,140.36       7,460.00            7,935.00              

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8212-420     EQUIPMENT -                       8,955.00                  8,955.00                 7,770.00        8,955.00            
8212-452     COMPUTERS -                       1,200.00                  (1,200.00)                -                           -                      1,500.00               ASUS E Tablet/fire house software
8212-421     VEHICLES 23,987.11          -                            -                           -                  -                         

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 23,987.11          10,155.00               (1,200.00)                8,955.00                7,770.00       8,955.00            1,500.00              

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 303,343.35        288,027.23             (4,200.00)                283,827.23            176,623.99   283,827.23       293,150.56          

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 16 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
FIRE DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13 ADJ DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6300-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 81,490.13               124,552.00                 124,552.00      70,750.32     124,552.00  107,569.28       
6300-102     SALARIES - NON EXEMPT FF/EMS -                            -                                -                     -                  -                 332,500.00       7 Full time EMS/FF positions
6300-111     SALARIES - OVERTIME -                            -                                -                     -                  -                 20,000.00          
6300-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 8,349.37                 15,779.32                   15,779.32        15,415.20     15,779.32     23,426.05          
6300-113     LONGEVITY PAY 352.00                     415.00                         415.00              414.40           415.00          813.00               
6300-122     TMRS 4,250.82                 8,573.08                     8,573.08           4,162.54        8,573.08       35,755.00          Rate change to 7.85%
6300-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,033.56                 11,174.00                   11,174.00        5,074.46        11,174.00     58,146.00          
6300-124     AFLAC 197.41                     490.00                         490.00              211.23           490.00          2,490.00            
6300-125     AD&D INSURANCE 3,576.16                 4,946.00                     4,946.00           4,946.00        4,946.00       4,946.00            
6300-126     WATER 2,934.00                 2,950.00                     2,950.00           1,892.16        2,950.00       2,950.00            
6300-127     MEDICARE 1,131.94                 1,817.60                     1,817.60           955.69           1,817.60       6,604.00            
6300-128     OTHER RETIREMENT 27,200.00               36,000.00                   36,000.00        15,010.00     36,000.00     36,000.00          
6300-129     ST DISABILITY 341.90                     623.32                         623.32              303.26           623.32          2,193.00            

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 135,857.29             207,320.32                 -                   207,320.32      119,135.26   207,320.32  633,392.33       

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6300-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,593.85                 2,200.00                     349.75             2,549.75           1,217.26        2,549.75       3,500.00            Adj for BHS Safer Grant- Ready, Set, Go
6300-202     POSTAGE 51.65                       200.00                         650.25             850.25              6.00                850.25          200.00               Adj for BHS Safer Grant- Ready, Set, Go
6300-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 128.92                     150.00                         150.00              29.00             150.00          150.00               
6300-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 5,036.06                 5,500.00                     5,500.00           3,393.96        5,500.00       6,000.00            
6300-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 7,366.20                 7,800.00                     7,800.00           4,912.04        7,800.00       12,800.00          
6300-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 12,293.16               12,000.00                   12,000.00        6,104.04        12,000.00     16,000.00          $4K EMS 
6300-207     FUEL - PROPANE 625.95                     1,900.00                     1,900.00           628.35           1,900.00       1,900.00            
6300-208     MINOR APPARATUS 10,451.44               16,600.00                   (3,172.60)        13,427.40        5,514.16        13,427.40     26,635.00          
6300-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 29,294.61               20,000.00                   20,000.00        10,656.51     20,000.00     30,000.00          
6300-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPLIES 4,420.47                 14,000.00                   16,135.36       30,135.36        913.48           30,135.36     42,210.00          $20K EMS Supplies
6300-227     PREVENTION ACTIVITES 2,005.42                 2,550.00                     2,550.00           1,089.13        2,550.00       3,800.00            

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 73,267.73               82,900.00                   13,962.76       96,862.76        34,463.93     96,862.76     143,195.00       

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6300-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 22,429.84               10,000.00                   1,089.00         11,089.00        5,073.99        11,089.00     12,000.00          
6300-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 20,901.62               20,500.00                   3,172.60         23,672.60        18,366.36     23,672.60     29,650.00          $1K EMS
6300-233     EQUIPMENT MAINT 2,090.80                 3,000.00                     3,000.00           358.25           3,000.00       3,000.00            

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 45,422.26               33,500.00                   4,261.60         37,761.60        23,798.60     37,761.60     44,650.00          

PURCHASED SERVICES

6300-302     FIRE DEPT REIBURSEMENT RUNS 100,000.03             125,000.00                 125,000.00      62,499.99     125,000.00  125,000.00       
6300-303     TELEPHONE 1,999.25                 1,700.00                     1,700.00           951.00           1,700.00       1,700.00            
6300-304     INTERNET 6,840.48                 6,600.00                     6,600.00           3,815.00        6,600.00       6,600.00            
6300-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 20,275.16               25,000.00                   25,000.00        4,408.19        25,000.00     25,755.00          
6300-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 36,209.02               43,600.00                   43,600.00        34,223.94     43,600.00     113,650.00       EMS $12,150/$49K Medic Oversight

6300-312     PARAMEDIC SCHOOL 2,900.00                 6,400.00                     6,400.00           -                  6,400.00       7,600.00            
6300-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,339.00                 4,100.00                     4,100.00           1,841.49        4,100.00       4,100.00            
6300-316     911 DISPATCH 26,600.00               27,795.00                   27,795.00        27,795.00     27,795.00     27,795.00          
6300-317     AMBULANCE (EMS) SERVICE 68,972.61               60,000.00                   (10,535.36)     49,464.64        23,917.89     49,464.64     26,000.00          
6300-323     CELL PHONE 2,726.15                 3,400.00                     3,400.00           1,554.96        3,400.00       4,000.00            
6300-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 5,193.61                 5,925.00                     5,925.00           5,511.99        5,925.00       5,925.00            $400 EMS
6300-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 14,217.63               17,000.00                   (3,100.00)        13,900.00        6,906.78        13,900.00     17,000.00          
6300-333     UTILITIES, WATER 1,046.58                 2,050.00                     2,050.00           1,288.14        2,050.00       2,050.00            
6300-337     PAGER SERVICE (260.05)                   -                                -                     -                  -                 600.00               
6300-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL -                            600.00                         600.00              -                  600.00          300.00               

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 290,059.47             329,170.00                 (13,635.36)     315,534.64      174,714.37   315,534.64  368,075.00       

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6300-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 2,540.50                 3,500.00                     3,500.00           3,180.96        3,500.00       4,500.00            
6300-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 2,174.00                 5,900.00                     (2,500.00)        3,400.00           3,039.00        3,400.00       7,870.00            
6300-444     MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 629.00                     1,500.00                     1,500.00           385.00           1,500.00       1,600.00            
6300-447     EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICE 6,209.09                 6,000.00                     6,000.00           2,621.48        6,000.00       7,500.00            
6300-448     CERT TRAINING & EQUIPMENT 9,987.07                 6,100.00                     6,100.00           990.84           6,100.00       12,700.00          
6300-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 1,316.98                 2,500.00                     2,500.00           403.47           2,500.00       2,500.00            
6300-498     MISCELLANEOUS 6,706.17                 1,500.00                     1,500.00           97.61             1,500.00       1,500.00            

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 29,562.81               27,000.00                   (2,500.00)        24,500.00        10,718.36     24,500.00     38,170.00          

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8300-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS -                     
8300-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES -                            -                     
8300-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS -                            -                                -                     
8300-421     VEHICLES 113,967.00             50,000.00                   50,000.00        42,094.75     50,000.00     66,750.00          Lease Life pack/$18 Cot and 2 ambulances
8300-450      COMPUTER HARDWARE 5,989.97                 14,600.00                   14,600.00        4,753.76        14,600.00     19,600.00          $6.5k EMS Tough Book/Data Modem/$9.1k Server
8300-450      SOFTWARE -                            -                                -                     -                  -                 $4k computer mounts and pc computer replacements
8300-452      HARDWARE AND TELECOMMUN 8,500.00                     8,500.00           7,856.04        8,500.00       25,000.00          2 Mobile Radios Ambulances $13k/2 portable radios $12k

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 119,956.97             73,100.00                   -                   73,100.00        54,704.55     73,100.00     111,350.00       

TOTAL FIRE 694,126.53             752,990.32                 2,089.00         755,079.32      417,535.07   755,079.32  1,338,832.33    

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 17 08/29/2013



11 -GENERAL FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION - NON-DEPARTMENTALFISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13 ADJ DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6999-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY 0.00 -                       -                         -                    37,934.00 Sal $34,678/TMRS $2,753/Medicare $503

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES -                  -                            -                      -                       -                         -                    37,934.00

MAINT & SUPPLIES

6999-214     CLEANINING SUPPLIES 1,476.11        1,500.00 1,500.00             478.17                  1,500.00          1,000.00
6999-231   FACILITY MAINT 10,969.96      12,000.00 2,500.00            14,500.00          9,814.60               14,500.00        14,000.00

TOTAL MAINT & SUPPLIES 12,446.07      13,500.00               2,500.00            16,000.00          10,292.77            16,000.00       15,000.00

6999-305     IT SUPPORT/MAINT 32,947.38      37,628.00 37,628.00          20,668.20             37,628.00        54,450.00 Baxter IT Support
6999-306     SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE -                       19,900.00 Cloud Backup/SPAM/Archiving/Sentinel

IPS Protec/Antivirus
6999-308     CLEANING & PEST CONTROL 13,000.00 13,000.00          6,970.00               13,000.00        13,700.00
6999-309      PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 25,000.00 2,500.00            27,500.00          15,000.00             27,500.00        
6999-310     LEGAL SERVICES 65,701.31      72,000.00 (7,000.00)           65,000.00          28,724.28             65,000.00        70,000.00
6999-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 700.00            1,000.00 1,000.00             -                         1,000.00          1,000.00
6999-326     LAW ENFORCEMENT 82,250.00      93,250.00 (11,000.00)         82,250.00          61,687.50             82,250.00        84,827.00
6999-327     CITIZENS ON PATROL 2,537.94        4,000.00 4,000.00             1,002.86               4,000.00          4,000.00
6999-336     ANIMAL CONTROL 33,600.00      33,600.00 33,600.00          25,200.00             33,600.00        33,600.00

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 217,736.63    279,478.00             (15,500.00)        263,978.00        159,252.84          263,978.00     281,477.00

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8999-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 9,000.00        21,455.00 21,455.00          21,455.00             21,455.00        
8999-420      EQUIPMENT 30,603.72      10,000.00 10,000.00          9,565.31               10,000.00        
8999-421      VEHICLE -                  0.00 -                       -                         45,300.00 Replacement Vehicle Collin County Deputy
8999-451     SOFTWARE, SUBSCR, BOOKS       6,698.80        10,164.00 10,164.00          5,865.64               10,164.00        7,400.00 $2.7k MS Office upgrade/$1.5 Adobe upgrade/

$3.2k Small Business Server Licenses
8999-452     HARDWARE, TELECOM     1,750.00        7,865.00 1,200.00            9,065.00             7,408.85               9,065.00          10,400.00 $7.5 replacement pcs/$1.4k hard drive

incode server memory/$1.5k operating system
 upgrade for HOST virtual server

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 48,052.52      49,484.00               1,200.00            50,684.00          44,294.80            50,684.00       63,100.00

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 278,235.22    342,462.00             (11,800.00)        330,662.00        213,840.41          330,662.00     397,511.00     

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 18 08/29/2013



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Page 19 08/29/2013



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
REVENUES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTSBUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13 ADJ DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES
RTR Funds TXDOT Projects FY 13 $80,000 left turn lanes

4404 INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE135,000.00         -                         280,000.00         280,000.00   -                     1,495,370.00            RTR Funds TXDOT Projects FY 14 $251,370 left turn lanes
RTR Funds TXDOT FM 2551 to FM 1378 FY 13 $200,000

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 135,000.00         -                        280,000.00        280,000.00   -                     -                    1,495,370.00            RTR Funds TXDOT FM 2551 to FM 1378 FY 14 $1,000,000
County Funds FM 2551 to FM 1378 FY 14 $244,000

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

4800  BOND PROCEEDS -                        -                         -                  -                    

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL -                        -                        -                       -                  -                     -                    -                              

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4911  INTEREST INCOME 9,096.47              5,500.00               3,333.77           5,500.00          

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 9,096.47 5,500.00 -                       0.00 3,333.77 5,500.00 0.00

***TOTAL REVENUES*** 144,096.47         5,500.00              280,000.00        280,000.00   3,333.77           5,500.00          1,495,370.00

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL PROPOSED BUDGET 

Page 20 08/29/2013



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8210-490-105 FM 2551 WASTE WATER GRAVITY SEWER 306,043.36        672,620.00          65,450.00$              738,070.00       398,324.64       738,070.00$          
8210-490-107 MCGARITY G STORAGE TANK 751,621.95        150,000.00          150,000.00       143,205.55       150,000.00$          
8210-490-108  STINSON WATER LINE PROJECT 75,120.00          1,543,114.00       (1,458,333.00)$       84,781.00         51,589.28         84,781.00$            1,458,333.00           
8210-490-111  OSAGE WATER LINE PROJECT -                      -                         29,800.00$              29,800.00         29,800.00$            
8210-490-112  ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PROJECT -                      -                         -                      18,300.00                 
8210-491-106  DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -                      50,000.00            50,000.00         50,000.00$            
8210-491-107  STINSON ROAD BRIDGE  AT MUDDY CREEK 57,408.00          607,567.00          (546,989.00)$           60,578.00         2,646.00           60,578.00$            
8210-491-108  FY 11-12 CAP ROAWAY PROJ 667,460.00        -                         -                      
8210-491-109  WHITE ROCK TRAIL 3,750.00            25,000.00            25,000.00         25,000.00$            
8210-491-110  FIRE DEPT EXPANSION PROJ 5,000.00            205,000.00          (125,000.00)$           80,000.00         30,824.73         80,000.00$            277,000.00              Design Costs Only Fire Dept Addition
8210-491-111  FY 12-13 CAP ROADWAY PROJ 440,940.00          440,940.00       440,940.00$          
8210-491-112  W LUCAS CC INTERSECTION PROJ RTR 500,000.00          (107,000.00)$           393,000.00       37,252.50         393,000.00$          30,000.00                 Environmental Costs
8210-491-113  W LUCAS RD FM 2551/FM 1378 -                      1,500,000.00           RTR/TXDOT Project

-                         -                      
-                         

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,866,403.31 4,194,241.00 (2,142,072.00)$       2,052,169.00 663,842.70 2,052,169.00$      3,283,633.00

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,866,403.31 4,194,241.00 (2,142,072.00)$       2,052,169.00 663,842.70 2,052,169.00$      3,283,633.00

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Page 21 08/29/2013



WATER FUND

Page 22 08/29/2013



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
 REVENUES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13 ADJ DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4461         WATER REVENUE 2,333,857.64    2,300,500.00        200,000.00        2,500,500.00                1,338,321.93    2,500,500.00    2,554,000.00             Based on new pricing
4462         WATER TAPS & BORES 1,875.00            2,000.00                (2,000.00)           -                                 -                     -                     -                               
4463         PENALTY & INTEREST 20,955.00          18,000.00              500.00               18,500.00                     12,140.00         18,500.00         18,000.00                   
4467         WATER METER 164,700.00       160,000.00            41,100.00          201,100.00                   137,500.00       201,100.00       165,000.00                 
4468         WATER METER REPAIRS 757.50               700.00                   334.80               1,034.80                        600.00               1,034.80           700.00                        
4469         WASTEWATER FEES 23,771.75          26,000.00              2,613.30            28,613.30                     17,936.19         28,613.30         26,000.00                   
4473         DISCONNECT  CHGS (16.02)                -                          -                                 -                     -                     -                               
4478         TRASH SERVICE 365,901.43       401,000.00            500.00               401,500.00                   266,914.60       401,500.00       401,000.00                 
4497         FH METER RENTAL INC 850.00               4,500.00                1,100.00            5,600.00                        3,850.00           5,600.00           4,500.00                     
4498         MISC. FEE AND CHARGES 565.00               -                                 -                     -                               

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 2,913,217.30    2,912,700.00        244,148.10       3,156,848.10               1,777,262.72   3,156,848.10   3,169,200.00             

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

4911         INTEREST INCOME 9,175.48            6,400.00                (820.00)              5,580.00                        3,895.10           5,580.00           6,000.00                     
4912         RETURN CHECK CHARGE 435.00               330.00                   45.00                  375.00                           300.00               375.00               400.00                        
4913         NTMWD REFUND 28,139.67          50,000.00              50,000.00                     50,000.00         50,000.00                   
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB 18,430.53          -                                 -                     -                     -                               
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS -                      -                          -                                 
4996         TRANSFER IN

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 56,180.68         56,730.00              (775.00)              55,955.00                     4,195.10           55,955.00         56,400.00                   

*** TOTAL REVENUES *** 2,969,397.98    2,969,430.00        243,373.10       3,212,803.10               1,781,457.82   3,212,803.10   3,225,600.00             

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL PROPOSED BUDGET 

Page 23 08/29/2013



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6400-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  168,832.85       176,955.40               176,955.40             115,943.75       176,955.40          176,955.40             
6400-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 102,705.12       107,172.00               107,172.00             70,027.93         107,172.00          107,172.00             
6400-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY -                     -                              8,000.00         8,000.00                  70,027.93         8,000.00               8,000.00                  Temporary help for UB
6400-106     CERTIFICATION FEES       4,725.00           6,000.00                    6,000.00                  3,800.00           6,000.00               6,000.00                  
6400-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY -                     -                              -                            -                     -                         10,703.01                Sal $9,792/TMRS $769/Medicare $142
6400-111     OVERTIME 17,184.10         20,000.00                 20,000.00                8,685.90           20,000.00             20,000.00                
6400-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION  4,999.53           5,160.00                    5,160.00                  4,807.50           5,160.00               5,160.00                  
6400-113     LONGEVITY PAY  1,376.00           1,640.00                    1,640.00                  1,640.00           1,640.00               1,904.00                  
6400-122     TMRS   20,330.49         20,785.16                 628.00             21,413.16                11,752.88         21,413.16             22,731.49                Rate change to 7.85%
6400-123     GROUP INSURANCE  35,126.16         37,370.00                 37,370.00                22,716.15         37,370.00             40,170.00                
6400-124     AFLAC 1,580.88           1,650.00                    1,650.00                  937.21               1,650.00               1,650.00                  
6400-127     MEDICARE   4,227.63           4,384.11                    116.00             4,500.11                  2,869.96           4,500.11               4,384.11                  
6400-129     ST DISABILITY 1,309.56           1,325.00                    125.00             1,450.00                  816.64               1,450.00               1,325.00                  
6400-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 3,600.00           3,600.00                    3,600.00                  2,350.00           3,600.00               3,600.00                  

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 365,997.32       386,041.67               8,869.00         394,910.67             316,375.85       394,910.67          409,755.01             

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6400-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 715.29               750.00                       100.00             850.00                     455.17               850.00                  750.00                     
6400-202     POSTAGE 334.95               1,000.00                    1,000.00                  144.27               1,000.00               1,000.00                  
6400-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 175.30               500.00                       500.00                     -                     500.00                  500.00                     
6400-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,117.46           1,200.00                    1,200.00                  462.07               1,200.00               1,200.00                  
6400-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 13,362.87         18,000.00                 18,000.00                6,063.00           18,000.00             18,000.00                
6400-207     FUEL - PROPANE 457.70               2,000.00                    2,000.00                  257.02               2,000.00               2,000.00                  
6400-208     MINOR APPARATUS 1,000.00           1,000.00                    1,000.00                  -                     1,000.00               1,000.00                  
6400-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 866.91               900.00                       900.00                     456.59               900.00                  1,000.00                  
6400-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES 30.83                 100.00                       100.00                     -                     100.00                  100.00                     
6400-212     CHEMICALS -                     300.00                       300.00                     -                     300.00                  300.00                     
6400-222     MISCELLANEOUS 468.05               500.00                       500.00                     406.64               500.00                  500.00                     
6400-223     SAND/DIRT 105.50               200.00                       200.00                     -                     200.00                  500.00                     
6400-224     ASPHALT/FLEXBASE/CONCRETE -                     1,500.00                    1,500.00                  -                     1,500.00               1,500.00                  

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 18,634.86         27,950.00                 100.00             28,050.00               8,244.76           28,050.00            28,350.00               

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6400-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 1,034.67           1,000.00                    1,000.00                  130.10               1,000.00               1,000.00                  
6400-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,760.10           4,000.00                    4,000.00                  924.23               4,000.00               4,500.00                  
6400-233     REPAIR & MAINT WTR FACILITIES 38,241.08         57,000.00                 57,000.00                19,584.72         57,000.00             57,000.00                
6400-xxx      REPAIR & MAINT SEWER FACILITIES -                     5,000.00                    5,000.00                  -                     5,000.00               5,000.00                  

 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 43,035.85         67,000.00                 -                   67,000.00               20,639.05         67,000.00            67,500.00               

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6400-237     TRASH SERVICES/RECYCLE 336,489.59       370,400.00               7,500.00         377,900.00             214,284.73       377,900.00          360,000.00             
6400-238     RECYCLE COSTS -                     -                              -                   -                            -                     -                         
6400-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 9,360.00           10,750.00                 10,750.00                6,100.00           10,750.00             11,500.00                
6400-303     TELEPHONE 4,566.78           4,600.00                    4,600.00                  2,364.52           4,600.00               4,800.00                  
6400-304     UB PROCESSING 19,791.19         19,800.00                 19,800.00                9,484.96           19,800.00             20,000.00                
6400-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 7,318.77           8,800.00                    8,800.00                  7,684.70           8,800.00               9,450.00                  
6400-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 5,487.04           5,500.00                    5,500.00                  1,847.66           5,500.00               5,500.00                  
6400-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 40,872.70         53,000.00                 53,000.00                27,377.19         53,000.00             95,000.00                $40k CCN update
6400-311     ENGINEERING FEES 3,500.00           4,000.00                    4,000.00                  -                     4,000.00               4,000.00                  
6400-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,142.71           5,500.00                    5,500.00                  3,023.37           5,500.00               5,750.00                  
6400-315     WATER - NTMWD 968,028.60       1,100,040.00            (90,000.00)     1,010,040.00          641,685.60       1,010,040.00       1,213,184.60          Est NTMWD rate $1.93 per 1,000 gallons was $1.75
6400-316     WASTEWATER   NTMWD 21,371.75         23,100.00                 1,900.00         25,000.00                14,912.07         25,000.00             23,000.00                
6400-323     CELL PHONE 2,970.49           3,305.00                    3,305.00                  1,749.27           3,305.00               3,405.00                  
6400-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 11,584.23         12,395.00                 12,395.00                11,714.24         12,395.00             13,000.00                
6400-331     ELECTRICITY 56,337.20         65,000.00                 65,000.00                27,518.84         65,000.00             65,000.00                
6400-333     UTILITIES, WATER 229.64               250.00                       250.00                     129.53               250.00                  250.00                     
6400-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 850.05               2,000.00                    2,000.00                  -                     2,000.00               2,000.00                  

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 1,491,900.74   1,688,440.00           (80,600.00)     1,607,840.00          969,876.68       1,607,840.00       1,835,839.60          

GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS

6400-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 498.67               500.00                       500.00                     287.62               500.00                  500.00                     
6400-443     DUES & MEMBERSHIPS -                            
6400-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING -                     300.00                       300.00                     35.00                 300.00                  300.00                     
6400-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 261.00               500.00                       500.00                     100.00               500.00                  500.00                     
6400-999     PILOT TRANSFER OUT 165,848.97       161,193.50               3,195.00         164,388.50             -                     164,388.50          174,544.00             

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS 166,608.64       162,493.50               3,195.00         165,688.50             422.62               165,688.50          175,844.00             

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8400-411     FURNITURE -                     -                   -                         
8400-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 955.58               2,000.00                    2,000.00                  -                     2,000.00               2,000.00                  
8400-XXX     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS - SEWER 25,000.00                 25,000.00                25,000.00             
8400-420     EQUIPMENT - WATER -                     5,000.00                    5,000.00                  -                     5,000.00               5,000.00                  
8400-XXX     EQUIPMENT- SEWER -                     50,000.00                 (50,000.00)     -                            -                     -                         
8400-421     VEHICLE  24,966.10         -                            -                     -                         33,000.00                Replacement 2005 F150 Ford Truck
8400-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 3,000.00                    300.00             3,300.00                  2,714.00           3,300.00               3,500.00                  
8400-452     HARDWARE & TELECOMM 3,600.00                    1,160.00         4,760.00                  3,583.00           4,760.00               3,700.00                  
8400-490     METER READ SYSTEM 45,074.84         32,500.00                 8,500.00         41,000.00                25,931.07         41,000.00             44,000.00                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 70,996.52         121,100.00               (40,040.00)     81,060.00               32,228.07         81,060.00            91,200.00               

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES 2,157,173.93   2,453,025.17           (108,476.00)   2,344,549.17          1,347,787.03   2,344,549.17       2,608,488.61          

Page 24 08/29/2013



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

DEBT SERVICE
7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 11,550.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 4,650.00 7,000.00 2,350.00
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 100,000.00
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 75,650.00 72,250.00 72,250.00 36,975.00 72,250.00 68,425.00
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 70,000.00
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 45,402.00 42,958.00 42,958.00 22,090.00 42,958.00 40,420.00
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 55,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 80,000.00
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 87,212.50 73,375.00 73,375.00 37,062.50 73,375.00 71,825.00
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 100.00 200.00 200.00 100.00 200.00 200.00

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 519,914.50        515,783.00          -                                  515,783.00          420,877.50          515,783.00          533,220.00

TRANSFER IN - PAY OFF OLD UTILITY BONDS 0.00

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 519,914.50        515,783.00           -                                   515,783.00           420,877.50          515,783.00          533,220.00               

Page 25 08/29/2013



DEBT SERVICE FUND

Page 26 08/29/2013



59 - DEBT SERVICES FUND 2011-2012 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2012-2013 2013-2014
 FISCAL YEAR FY BUDGET FINAL BUDGET FISCAL YEAR YTD ACTUAL
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL RVS FOR MID-YR ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET  REVISED AS OF 5/13

PROJECTED 

ACTUAL

PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

REVENUES

PROPERTY TAXES
4011      PROPERTY TAXES 647,765.64     658,497.00                            (1,540.00)             656,957.00                 646,818.37   656,957.00     612,710.00               
4012      PROPERTY TAXES-DELINQUENT 5,080.87         4,600.00                                5,100.00               9,700.00                     7,967.46       9,700.00          8,000.00                    
4015      PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 1,240.57         1,000.00                                1,701.00               2,701.00                     1,362.31       2,701.00          1,900.00                    
4911      INTEREST INCOME 739.80             575.00                                    575.00                         377.87           575.00             500.00                       

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 654,826.88     664,672.00                            5,261.00               669,933.00                 656,526.01  669,933.00     623,110.00               

TOTAL REVENUES 654,826.88     664,672.00                            5,261.00               669,933.00                 656,526.01  669,933.00     623,110.00               

  
EXPENDITURES

DEBT SERVICE

7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 145,000.00     155,000.00                            155,000.00                 155,000.00   155,000.00     165,000.00               
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 18,147.50       11,320.00                              11,320.00                   7,442.50       11,320.00        3,877.50                    
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 75,000.00       75,000.00                              75,000.00                   75,000.00     75,000.00        80,000.00                 
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 59,393.75       56,207.00                              56,207.00                   28,900.00     56,207.00        52,912.50                 
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 10,000.00       10,000.00                              10,000.00                   10,000.00     10,000.00        10,000.00                 
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 64,672.00       64,296.00                              64,296.00                   32,242.00     64,296.00        63,920.00                 
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 95,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 125,000.00
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 135,375.00 113,750.00 113,750.00 57,475.00 113,750.00 111,300.00
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 570.00             700.00                                    700.00                         100.00           700.00             700.00                       

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 603,158.25     606,273.00                            -                         606,273.00                 486,159.50  606,273.00     612,710.00               

Page 27 08/29/2013



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
CITY OF LUCAS 

PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
 
The City of Lucas will conduct a Public Hearing on the Proposed Operating Budget for 
the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 on Thursday, August 15, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. and on 
Thursday, September 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, Texas 
75002. 
 
You have a right to attend the Public Hearing and make comments. A copy of the 
proposed budget is on file with the City Secretary’s Office located at 665 Country Club, 
Lucas, Texas 75002. It is also available on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us.  
 
 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 
 



Item No. 07 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Donna Bradshaw   
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:  7/19/2013   
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

 
Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation of a property in Collin 
County, Texas, BEING A TRACT OF PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE L.P. TURNER 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 901 AND THE J. GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 349, 
SITUATED IN COLLIN COUTY, TEXAS, AN BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; Beginning at a point in the north line of Parker Road, said 
point being the southeast corner of Kirkland Estates West, an addition to the City of 
Lucas, Texas, according to the plat recorded in volume 10, page 74 of the Map 
Records, Collin County, Texas, in iron rod for corner; THENCE North 00°11’27” West 
along the east line of said Kirkland Estates West, a distance of 1,816.50 feet to a corner 
of said Addition, an iron rod for corner; THENCE North 89°00’00” east, a distance of 
298.50 feet to an iron rod for corner; THENCE South 0°15’52” East, a distance of 
1,859.00 feet to a point in the North line of Parker Road, an iron rod for corner; 
THENCE North 82°52’15” West, along said line of Parker Road, a distance of 303.20 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 550,606 square feet or 12.64017 
acres of land.  More commonly known as the 3R property. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st 
Public Hearing was held on August 15, 2013] 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends annexing property as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
This parcel is within the 1 mile ETJ of the City. All documentation supports annexation 
for this property:  

 Proof of Ownership and metes & bounds verified. 
 Parcel is contiguous to the City. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 07 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
These parcels were recommended by Staff at the last annexation workshop and were 
approved by Council for consideration. 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action required at this time. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   



11-1559-01                                                          July 23, 2012 

Page 1 of 2 P:\Company\Government\City Council\Agendas\2013\cc-20130905-rg\07 
Exhibit A 3R.doc 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

3R PROPERTIES, LC 
  

DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING A TRACT OF PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE L.P. TURNER SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 901 AND THE J. GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 349, SITUATED IN COLLIN COUTY, 
TEXAS, AN BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
Beginning at a point in the north line of Parker Road,  said point being the southeast corner of Kirkland 
Estates West, an addition to the City of Lucas, Texas, according to the plat recorded in volume 10, 
page 74 of the Map Records, Collin County, Texas, in iron rod for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00°11’27” West along the east line of said Kirkland Estates West, a distance of 
1,816.50 feet to a corner of said Addition, an iron rod for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°00’00” east, a distance of 298.50 feet to an iron rod for corner; 
 
THENCE South 0°15’52” East, a distance of 1,859.00 feet to a point in the North line of Parker Road, 
an iron rod for corner;  
 
THENCE North 82°52’15” West, along said line of Parker Road, a distance of 303.20 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 550,606 square feet or 12.64017 acres of land. 
 
 
   
NOTE: 
IT IS THE INTENT TO DESCRIBE FOR ANNEXATION PURPOSES THE PROPERTY 
CONVEYED IN THE INSTRUMENT OF RECORD SHOWN BELOW. 
COURSES, DISTANCES, AND MONUMENTS OF THE DESCRIPTION HEREON ARE THE 
SAME AS THE DOCUMENT FILED.  NO FIELD SURVEY WAS PERFORMED TO VERIFY 
CALLED DISTANCES, BEARINGS, OR MONUMENT STATUS.  
 
 
 COPIED FROM VOLUME 5024, PAGE 1136, DRCCT. 



Exhibit B 
Depiction of Owners Parcel 

3R Properties 
 

 



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
TO CONSIDER ANNEXATION OF LAND 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas 
(the “City”), will hold a public hearing regarding the unilateral annexation of the 
property hereinafter described. The public hearing (2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public 
Hearing was held on August 15, 2013) will begin at 7:00 PM on the 5th day of 
September, 2013.  The public hearing will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall 
located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered 
for annexation is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
   
BEING A TRACT OF PARCEL OF LAND OUT OF THE L.P. TURNER SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 901 AND THE J. GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 349, SITUATED 
IN COLLIN COUTY, TEXAS, AN BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS; 
 
Beginning at a point in the north line of Parker Road, said point being the 
southeast corner of Kirkland Estates West, an addition to the City of Lucas, 
Texas, according to the plat recorded in volume 10, page 74 of the Map Records, 
Collin County, Texas, in iron rod for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00°11’27” West along the east line of said Kirkland Estates West, 
a distance of 1,816.50 feet to a corner of said Addition, an iron rod for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°00’00” east, a distance of 298.50 feet to an iron rod for 
corner; 
 
THENCE South 0°15’52” East, a distance of 1,859.00 feet to a point in the North 
line of Parker Road, an iron rod for corner;  
 



THENCE North 82°52’15” West, along said line of Parker Road, a distance of 
303.20 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 550,606 square feet or 
12.64017 acres of land. 
         
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend. If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of 
Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas Texas 75002, 
972-727-8999, email kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will 
be presented at the Hearing. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary, Lucas, Texas 
 
 
  



Item No. 08 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Donna Bradshaw   
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:  7/19/2013   
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

 
Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation of a property in Collin 
County, Texas, BEING A 9.973 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS IN THE JOHN McKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596, BEING 
PART OF A CALLED 38.38 ACRE TRACT AS DEEDED TO J.C. AND OLLIE 
TOMBERLINE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 595, PAGE 205 OF THE DEED 
RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, (DRCCT), AND BEING THE SAME TRACT 
OF LAND AS DEEDED TO ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. STEVENS AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 5476, PAGE 4796 DRCCT: BEGINNING at a point for comer 
in the center of a public road, said corner also being the Northwest corner of said John 
McKinney Survey; THENCE North 89°22’24” East, with North line of said McKinney 
Survey, for a distance of 1170.76 feet to a point for corner; THENCE South 1°04’22” East, 
for a distance of 364.00 feet to a point for corner at a fence corner; THENCE South 
88°47’24” West, partially with a fence line, for a distance of 1177.77 feet to a point for 
corner in the center of said public road; THENCE North, 376.00 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 434,444.9 square feet or 9.973 acres of land, more or less 
or more commonly known as the Stevens property. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public 
Hearing was held on August 15, 2013] 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends annexing property as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
These parcels were recommended by Staff at the last annexation workshop and were 
approved by Council for consideration. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 08 
City Secretary’s use only 

MOTION: 
 
No action required at this time. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   



11-1515-01                                                          September 20, 2011 

Page 1 of 1 P:\Company\Government\City Council\Agendas\2013\cc-20130905-rg\08 
Exhibit A Stevens.docx 

 

Exhibit A  
Legal description of Parcel 
CITY OF LUCUS, TEXAS 

ANNEXATION  
ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. STEVENS 

 
DESCRIPTION 

 
BEING A 9.973 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS IN THE 
JOHN McKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596, BEING PART OF A CALLED 38.38 ACRE 
TRACT AS DEEDED TO J.C. AND OLLIE TOMBERLINE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 595, 
PAGE 205 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, (DRCCT), AND BEING 
THE SAME TRACT OF LAND AS DEEDED TO ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. STEVENS 
AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 5476, PAGE 4796 DRCCT: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for comer in the center of a public road, said corner also being the Northwest 
corner of said John McKinney Survey; 
 
THENCE North 89°22’24” East, with North line of said McKinney Survey, for a distance of 1170.76 
feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 1°04’22” East, for a distance of 364.00 feet to a point for corner at a fence corner; 
 
THENCE South 88°47’24” West, partially with a fence line, for a distance of 1177.77 feet to a point 
for corner in the center of said public road; 
 
THENCE North, 376.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 434,444.9 square feet or 
9.973 acres of land, more or less. 
 
 
 
 
  
NOTE: 
COURSES, DISTANCES, AND MONUMENTS OF THE DESCRIPTION HEREON ARE THE 
SAME AS THE DOCUMENT FILED.  NO FIELD SURVEY WAS PERFORMED TO VERIFY 
CALLED DISTANCES, BEARINGS, OR MONUMENT STATUS. 
 



Exhibit B 
Depiction of owners Parcel 

Stevens 
 

 



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
TO CONSIDER ANNEXATION OF LAND 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas (the 
“City”), will hold a public hearing regarding the unilateral annexation of the property 
hereinafter described. The public hearing (2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing 
was held on August 15, 2013) will begin at 7:00 PM on the 5th day of September, 
2013.  The public hearing will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered for annexation 
is located in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
   
BEING A 9.973 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS IN THE JOHN McKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596, BEING PART 
OF A CALLED 38.38 ACRE TRACT AS DEEDED TO J.C. AND OLLIE 
TOMBERLINE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 595, PAGE 205 OF THE DEED 
RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, (DRCCT), AND BEING THE SAME 
TRACT OF LAND AS DEEDED TO ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. 
STEVENS AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 5476, PAGE 4796 DRCCT: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for comer in the center of a public road, said corner also 
being the Northwest corner of said John McKinney Survey; 
 
THENCE North 89°22’24” East, with North line of said McKinney Survey, for a 
distance of 1170.76 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 1°04’22” East, for a distance of 364.00 feet to a point for corner at 
a fence corner; 
 
THENCE South 88°47’24” West, partially with a fence line, for a distance of 
1177.77 feet to a point for corner in the center of said public road; 
 



THENCE North, 376.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
434,444.9 square feet or 9.973 acres of land, more or less. 
         
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend. If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, 
Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas Texas 75002, 972-727-
8999, email kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be 
presented at the Hearing. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary, Lucas, Texas 
 
 
  



Item No. 09 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Donna Bradshaw   
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:  7/19/2013   
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

 
Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the petition filed by D.R. Horton Homes requesting 
annexation of a parcel of land located on Stinson Road further described as Stinson 
Highlands Phase ll generally located at the intersection of Highland Drive and Inverness 
Lane, consisting of 43 lots, and 66.1034 acres out of the John Grey Survey, ABS No. 349, 
Lewis P Turner Survey, ABS No. 901; George Gunnel Survey, ABS No. 352, Collin 
County, Texas. [2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing was held on August 15, 2013] 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends annexing property as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
These parcels were recommended by Staff at the last annexation workshop and were 
approved by Council for consideration. 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action required at this time. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



 
OWNER’S PROPERTY 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Exhibit B  
Depiction or owners property 

 
 
 

 



 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR ANNEXATION 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas (the 
“City”), will hold a public hearing regarding the petition filed by D.R. Horton Homes 
requesting the City annex a parcel of land located on Stinson Road hereinafter 
described. The public hearing (2nd Public Hearing, 1st Public Hearing was held on 
August 15, 2013) will begin at 7:00 PM on the 5th day of September, 2013. The 
public hearing will be held at the City of Lucas’ City Hall located at 665 Country 
Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The property to be considered for annexation is located 
in Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
   
Stinson Highlands Phase ll generally located at the intersection of Highland Drive 
and Inverness Lane, consisting of 43 lots, and 66.1034 acres out of the John Grey 
Survey, ABS No. 349, Lewis P Turner Survey, ABS No. 901; George Gunnel 
Survey, ABS No. 352, Collin County Texas 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend. If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, 
Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas Texas 75002, 972-727-
8999, email kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be 
presented at the Hearing. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary, Lucas, Texas 



Item No. 10 
City Secretary’s use only 

   
 

Council Meeting:    September 5, 2013           Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Joe Hilbourn    
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared: August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider an application request by Bank of America for 
site plan approval.  The property to be considered is known as Lot 2, Block A of the 
Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas Road and Angel 
Parkway intersection. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
Kelly Gomez on behalf of Bank of America in compliance with the City’s Zoning Use 
Chart, and the City’s Code of Ordinances, has filed an application for site plan approval 
for a parcel located in Lot 2 block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve the application request by Bank of America for site plan 
approval.  The property to be considered is known as Lot 2, Block A of the Wal-Mart 
Lucas Addition, located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas Road and Angel Parkway 
intersection. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Request 





 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City 
of Lucas, Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday, August 
08, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. and City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on 
Thursday, September 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 665 
Country Club, Lucas, Texas to consider an application request by Bank of 
America for a site plan approval. The property to be considered is located in 
Collin County, Texas, and described as follows: 
 
Lot 2 Block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition. More commonly known as the 
North East corner of the intersection of West Lucas Road and Angel Parkway.  

 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  
If you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of 
Lucas, Attention:  City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, 
email kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will be presented at 
the Hearing. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary 
 
 
  
 
 



Item No. 11 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Kathy Wingo    
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:  N/A    Date Prepared:  August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $   N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the August 15, 2013 City 
Council meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve the minutes from the August 15, 2013 City Council meeting 
as presented. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

City Council Meeting 
August 15, 2013, at 7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 

Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present/Absent: 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark   Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele (absent) 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap (absent) Councilmember Jim Olk  
Councilmember Steve Duke  Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  City Secretary Kathy Wingo   
City Manager Jeff Jenkins   Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida   Finance Manager Liz Exum 
Fire Chief Jim Kitchens   Public Works Director Stanton Foerster 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence led everyone in saying the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Citizens’ Input 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

There was no one who wished to speak during Citizen’s Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 

There was nothing to report during the Community Interest portion of the meeting. 

Regular Agenda 

3) Discuss and Consider the review and/or change of benefit options for Employee 
Benefit Services for fiscal year starting October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 
2014. [Meehan] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

Brinson Benefits assisted the City of Lucas in a recent RFP (Request For Proposal) 
to determine if the City is offering the best options for the employees of the City of 
Lucas. 

There were seven (7) major healthcare providers offering coverage for the City.  
After a review of the choices, the results showed that a 19% decrease occurred if an 
increase to the current deductible to 10 times what it is today to a 48% increase in 
premiums. 

Management felt that it would be unrealistic to increase the deductible because 
options for family are not affordable.  Coverage to families still are untouchable for 
most of the City’s employees.  Some cities are supplementing the cost of the family 
coverage. 

Staff is proposing to change providers on some of the supplemental insurance to 
save some money for the City and actually results in better coverage for the 
employees. 

Staff did find a need to review our plans that are governed by the IRS Revenue 
Code Section 125, because there is specific plan documentation required along with 
providing for a non-discrimination testing which cannot be located.  Brinson will bring 
the City into compliance. 

Brinson has initiated the City employees with Consult-A-Doc and Purple Card 
Patient Advocacy programs.  The Consult-A-Doc covers up to five (5) people who 
live in the same home coverage.  There is no cost to the employee and can aid in 
determining if a regular doctor’s visit is required.  The Purple Card can help with 
some difficult cases in trying to get a conclusion that benefits the employee. 

Demetra Bell-Runnels is a Senior Benefits Strategist for Brinson Benefits.  She will 
explain the RFP options and the cost benefits. 

Staff recommends approval of the recommended policies based on Brinson’s 
expertise and analysis. 

Demetra Bell-Runnels presented the Council with three (3) options to consider: 

Option 1 – Renew with TML, 3% increase, benefit to remain the same. 

Option 2 – Alternate to TML, -19.69% decrease, $1,000 deductible, $25 office visit 
co-pay. 

Option 3 – Alternate to TML, -22.10% decrease, $1,500 deductible, $25 office visit 
co-pay. 

Staff is recommending Option 1, renewing with TML for medical options. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

Staff also recommends changing to Dental Select for a cost savings to the City of -
12.71% and better coverage for the employee. 

For the vision plan, Staff recommends Block Vision, three rate guarantee with small 
co-pays, larger reimbursements with a -17% cost savings to the City. 

Staff recommends staying with TML for Life and Short Term Disability Insurance. 

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve Staff 
recommendations for medical, dental, vision, life insurance and short-
term disability.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

Supplemental Agenda 

Discuss and Consider the approval of a Development Agreement between the City 
of Lucas and Megatel Homes III, LLC regarding waterline improvements and right-
of-way dedications. [Hilbourn] 

JJ Singh, representing Megatel Homes, is proposing a development agreement to 
provide for a property that is 239 acres plus or minus.  The property is currently 
zoned R-1.  The agreement would cover public improvements. 

Per the approved Water Master Plan, the water main along Parker Road should be 
upgraded from its current size of 6” to a 10” line.  The proposed agreement covers 
when the line would be installed.  Staff recommended that the line be installed by the 
time forty (40) lots are built out.  Megatel is asking to wait until all of Phase I is 
complete, fifty (51) lots.  The agreement calls out for the developer to be reimbursed 
the cost of the line upgrade with impact fees. 

Proposed Layout – Southern 1st Phase: 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 

Proposed Layout – 2nd Phase: 

 

Staff is recommending that the agreement be approved with the change to date of 
installation of waterline improvement prior to completion of fifty (51) homes. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

MOTION: Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to approve the 
Development Agreement between the City of Lucas and Megatel Homes 
III, LLC regarding waterline improvements and right-of-way dedications 
with a change to date of installation prior to completion of 51 homes. 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote:  5-0. 

Public Hearings 
4) Public Hearing for adopting the Tax Rate and levying the Ad Valorem Taxes for the 

Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014 to provide revenue for the payment of current expenditures. 
(Proposed Tax Rate is 0.355616; Current Tax Rate is 0.374177) [1st Public 
Hearing, 2nd Public Hearing will be held on September 5, 2013] [Exum] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:36 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:36 p.m. 

No action required. 

5) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the proposed Operating Budget for the Fiscal 
Year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014. [Copy of 
proposed budget available at City Hall upon request and currently posted on 
the City’s website.  1st Public Hearing, 2nd Public Hearing will be held on 
September 5, 2013] [Exum] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:37 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:37 p.m. 

No action required. 

6) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation of a property in Collin 
County, Texas, BEING A TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE L.P. TURNER SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 901 AND THE J. GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 349, SITUATED IN 
COLLIN COUTY, TEXAS, AN BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS; Beginning at a point in the north line of Parker Road, said point being 
the southeast corner of Kirkland Estates West, an addition to the City of Lucas, 
Texas, according to the plat recorded in volume 10, page 74 of the Map Records, 
Collin County, Texas, in iron rod for corner; THENCE North 00°11’27” West along 
the east line of said Kirkland Estates West, a distance of 1,816.50 feet to a corner of 
said Addition, an iron rod for corner; THENCE North 89°00’00” east, a distance of 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

298.50 feet to an iron rod for corner; THENCE South 0°15’52” East, a distance of 
1,859.00 feet to a point in the North line of Parker Road, an iron rod for corner; 
THENCE North 82°52’15” West, along said line of Parker Road, a distance of 303.20 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 550,606 square feet or 12.64017 
acres of land.  More commonly known as the 3R property. [1st Public Hearing, 2nd 
Public Hearing will be held on September 5, 2013]  [Hilbourn] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:38 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:38 p.m. 

No action required. 

 

 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

7) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the unilateral annexation of a property in Collin 
County, Texas, BEING A 9.973 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS IN THE JOHN McKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 596, 
BEING PART OF A CALLED 38.38 ACRE TRACT AS DEEDED TO J.C. AND 
OLLIE TOMBERLINE AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 595, PAGE 205 OF THE 
DEED RECORDS OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, (DRCCT), AND BEING THE 
SAME TRACT OF LAND AS DEEDED TO ROGER A. STEVENS AND JANIS H. 
STEVENS AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 5476, PAGE 4796 DRCCT: BEGINNING 
at a point for comer in the center of a public road, said corner also being the 
Northwest corner of said John McKinney Survey; THENCE North 89°22’24” East, 
with North line of said McKinney Survey, for a distance of 1170.76 feet to a point for 
corner; THENCE South 1°04’22” East, for a distance of 364.00 feet to a point for 
corner at a fence corner; THENCE South 88°47’24” West, partially with a fence line, 
for a distance of 1177.77 feet to a point for corner in the center of said public road; 
THENCE North, 376.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
434,444.9 square feet or 9.973 acres of land, more or less or more commonly known 
as the Stevens property. [1st Public Hearing, 2nd Public Hearing will be held on 
September 5, 2013] [Hilbourn] 
 
The Public Hearing was opened at 7:38 p.m. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 
 
The Public Hearing was closed at 7:38 p.m. 
 
No action required. 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 8 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

8) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the petition filed by D.R. Horton Homes 
requesting annexation of a parcel of land located on Stinson Road further described 
as Stinson Highlands Phase ll generally located at the intersection of Highland Drive 
and Inverness Lane, consisting of 43 lots, and 66.1034 acres out of the John Grey 
Survey, ABS No. 349, Lewis P Turner Survey, ABS No. 901; George Gunnel 
Survey, ABS No. 352, Collin County, Texas. [1st Public Hearing, 2nd Public 
Hearing will be held on September 5, 2013]  [Hilbourn] 

 
The Public Hearing was opened at 7:39 p.m. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 
 
The Public Hearing was closed at 7:39 p.m. 
 
No action required. 

 
Depiction of Stinson Highlands Phase II: 

 
 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 9 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

Regular Agenda 

9) Discuss and Consider the re-alignment for the Chief of the City of Lucas' Fire 
Department to be a direct report to the City Council. [Lawrence] 

Councilmember Philip Lawrence stated that this action would actually require a vote 
by the citizens of Lucas since the Fire Chief’s position is called out in the Home Rule 
Charter. 

Councilmember Philip Lawrence wants the Fire Chief to be given the authority to 
conduct the necessary activities of the position.  Councilmember Lawrence feels that 
this position does not need to be supervised by the City Manager. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark stated that Council cannot make this decision. 

The City Attorney stated that the City Manager, City Secretary, City Attorney, and 
Municipal Court Judge currently are the only positions that directly report to the City 
Council per the Home Rule Charter.  This change would have to be put on a ballot 
for a vote by the citizens. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark said that Council should not discuss this tonight; but if 
Councilmember Lawrence wishes to submit the proposed charter amendment to the 
City Manager or City Attorney, who are compiling a list of charter changes, he can 
do so and Council can then discuss the list of proposed charter amendments at a 
later date. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher said at one time Council had oversight of the Fire 
Chief.  There was at that time a feeling that the Fire Department was divided from 
City Hall.  Councilmember Fisher does not want that to happen again, and therefore, 
could not support this change. 

Councilmember Olk agrees with Councilmember Fisher.  The citizens voted on the 
Home Rule Charter and decided on the reporting structure for the Fire Chief. 

Councilmember Duke agrees with Councilmember(s) Debbie Fisher and Jim Olk. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark agrees with the previous comments.  It is difficult to have 
seven different bosses one would almost need to have a dotted line reporting 
structure. 

No action taken. 

10) Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the August 1, 2013, City 
Council Regular meeting. [Wingo] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 10 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the minutes from the 
August 1, 2013, City Council Regular meeting.  Councilmember Steve 
Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

11) Discuss and Consider recycling options and/or approve Amendment No. 4 to the 
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and Collin County for Recycling 
Roll-Off Container. [Jenkins] 

City Manager Jeff Jenkins asked Council, “What is the goal in promoting recycling?”  
Is it to provide a service to the Lucas resident?  Is it to provide a service to Collin 
County residents?  Or perhaps, both. 

The recycle dumpsters currently located behind old City Hall, 151 Country Club, 
costs the City $20,000 plus the indirect man-hours annually.  Weekly the Public 
Works Staff has removed non-recyclables such as tires, motor oil, and paint.  These 
dumpsters are providing a convenience for Collin County residents but who are not 
necessarily citizens of Lucas. 

Pictures taken just two weeks ago at the site: 

   

Staff presented several options that Council might consider: 

1. Refer residents to current program provided by Barnes Waste Disposal 

a. 29% of current trash accounts  or 535 currently participating in recycle 
program 

b. Cost to the resident is $4.35/month or $51.60/year 
c. Program is voluntary 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 11 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

2. Implement a mandatory program for all residents at a cost of $4.15 per unit 
a. Residents would use own can or clear/clear blue recycle bags for 

collection (available for purchase at City Hall) 
b. Barnes may have some startup cost if they buy the containers. 

 
3. Use current funds to subsidize the cost of the blue recycle bags. 
4. Use current funds to subsidize a portion of the monthly $4.15 cost. 
5. Ask other (Wal-Mart, Lovejoy ISD, etc.) to establish a recycling program. 
6. Stop participation with Collin County/IESI and roll the funds back into the 

General Fund. 
 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to deny Amendment No. 4   
to the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and Collin County 
for Recycling Roll-Off Container and authorize the City Manager to 
terminate the current agreement effective September 30, 2013.  
Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  
5-0. 

12) Discuss and Consider the approval of Amendment No. 6 to the Interlocal Agreement 
between the City of Lucas and Collin County for On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF). 
[Jenkins] 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve Amendment No. 6 to 
the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and Collin County for 
On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) and direct City Manager to speak to 
someone with Collin County to request an improvement be made for 
enforcement of various issues that arise.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

13) Discuss and Consider the approval of an agreement for Professional Services 
between the City of Lucas and Freese and Nichols, Inc. for design of Rock Ridge 
Road Waterline Improvements. [Foerster] 

Phases of the waterline improvements: 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 12 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 13 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 

North Texas Municipal Water District is going to build a 60” waterline used to supply 
water to McKinney.  The City has a unique opportunity to share the construction 
easement to install a waterline to service the homes in this area that get their water 
from the City of Lucas.  The City services about sixty (60) homes within the Allen 
ETJ via the current 4” waterline. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to approve an agreement 
for Professional Services between the City of Lucas and Freese and 
Nichols, Inc. for design of Rock Ridge Road Waterline Improvements with 
the final approval of the City Attorney and authorize the City Manager to 
execute said agreement.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

14) Discuss and Consider the annexation of parcels located in the city’s ETJ, and 
expanding our ETJ along with parts of Lake Lavon and Bratonia Park (east side of 
Lake Lavon). [Hilbourn] 

Staff has completed the first three rounds of annexation.  Staff is now seeking 
direction from Council on the next phase of annexations. 
 
This is how the City looked prior to the start of annexations (see next page): 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 14 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 
 
Annexations by year: 
 
2011   3 properties annexed   27.654 acres 
2012   28 unilateral annexations   1,176.89 acres 
   2 voluntary annexations   231.03 acres 
 
2013   2 unilateral annexations   22.62 acres 
   1 voluntary annexation   66.11 acres 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 15 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 
 
Yellow – is in the city limits 
Black – has an approved development agreement providing for annexation 
White – is available for annexation 
Blue – property with a boundry agreement with City of Allen that Staff proposes being 
amended/altered. 
 
The City started with the ability to annex 30% of the city.  The City may unilateral annex 
up to 10% but may roll over from year to year up to a maximum of 30%.  2011 was the 
first year that the City used unilateral annexations.  Any voluntary annexation do not 
count against this maximum of 30%. 
 
2011, started with 30%, less than 1% used, rolled over 29+% 
2012, started with 30%, used 14.72%, rolled over 15.28% 
2013, started with 25+%, used less than 1%, 24+% remaining. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 16 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

 
A list of proposed annexations with acreages follows: 
 
 Edgewood Estates    41 acres 
 Cimarron     32.15 acres 
 Claremont Springs Phase I   26 acres 
 Lakeview Downs    148.7 acres 
 
Total acreage of 247.85 acres, using 2% of the 24%, leaving 22% available. 
 
 Part of Lake Lavon and Bratonia Park 600 acres 
 

This would use 6%, leaving 16% available for later annexations. 
 
Value added to the City with the annexation of Edgewood Estates: 
 
 Assessed land value   $27,972,761 
 City Taxes based on above  $104,897.85 
 Water Sales (out-of-city rates)  $131,520 
 Water Sales (in-city rates)   $87,680 
 Loss to Water Fund    $43,840 
 Gain to General Fund   $104,897.85 
 Gain after Water Revenue loss  $61,058.85 
 
Value added to the City with the annexation of Cimarron: 
 
 Assessed land value   $14,263,858 
 City Taxes based on above  $53,388.22 
 Water Sales (out-of-city rates)  $79,541 
 Water Sales (in-city rates)   $53,027.33 
 Loss to Water Fund    $26,513.67 
 Gain to General Fund   $53,388.22 
 Gain after Water Revenue loss  $26,874.55 
 
Value added to the City with the annexation of Claremont Springs Phase I: 
 
 Assessed land value   $10,831,320 
 City Taxes based on above  $40,617.45 
 Water Sales (out-of-city rates)  $44,254 
 Water Sales (in-city rates)   $29,502.67 
 Loss to Water Fund    $14,751.33 
 Gain to General Fund   $40,617.45 
 Gain after Water Revenue loss  $25,866.12 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 17 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

Additional expense to consider with Claremont Springs’ annexation would be $62,500 to 
repair drainage issues in Claremont Springs Phase I. 
 
New ETJ to the east if approved: 
 

 
 
The advantages would be that no one could annex into the City’s ETJ; no one may form 
a municipality in the City’s ETJ without prior consent; total gain to General Fund, 
$198,903.52; total loss from Water Fund, $85,105; with a net gain of $113,798.52. 
 
One disadvantage being the expense to repair the drainage issue in Claremont Springs 
Phase I in the amount of $62,500. 
 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher stated that when the annexations began it was a goal to 
control development.  Cimarron, Edgewood Estates and Claremont Springs Phase I is 
already developed.  Councilmember Fisher feels that there is no benefit to annexing 
these developments at this time. 
 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence agreed with Councilmember Fisher, there are no 
benefits to the City. 
 
Councilmember Jim Olk disagreed saying that there would be a gain to the General 
Fund, $255K which would go a long way in funding the Fire Department.  The houses 
are already there so the City knows what we are getting.  Councilmember Olk said he is 
interested in the full annexation plan being proposed. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 18 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

Councilmember Steve Duke agrees with Councilmember Olk.  Councilmember Duke 
went on to say that people he knows that bought in these developments thought they 
were buying into the City of Lucas. 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark is in agreement with the proposed annexation package.   
 
MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion for Staff to proceed with the 

annexation of parcels located in the city’s ETJ, and expanding our ETJ 
along with parts of Lake Lavon and Bratonia Park (east side of Lake 
Lavon).  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote:  3-2, Councilmember(s) Philip Lawrence and Debbie Fisher voting 
NAY. 

15) Discuss and Consider an amendment to an existing boundary agreement between the 
City of Lucas and the City of Allen to include parcels on the west side of Rock Ridge 
Road. [Hilbourn] 

The City of Lucas and the City of Allen currently have a boundary agreement, approved 
in 1984, that runs to the east side of Rock Ridge Road.  Staff is proposing an 
amendment to that agreement to include parcels on the west side of Rock Ridge Road 
currently in the city’s ETJ. 

The area is currently served by a mixed CCN, but is located within the City of Allen’s 
ETJ. 

There are plans to add a new water main down Rock Ridge Road.  Water service is 
provided to the residents on Fairbrook by the City of Allen, which is outside their CCN.  
Residents west of Rock Ridge Road get their water from the City of Lucas. 

CCN for the area: 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 19 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

The area shown in the aqua is the area Staff is recommending moving into the City’s 
ETJ: 

 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve an amendment to an 
existing boundary agreement between the City of Lucas and the City of 
Allen to include parcels on the west side of Rock Ridge Road and 
authorize City Manager to begin negotiations with the City of Allen to 
relinquish ETJ.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

16) Discuss and Consider the approval of a contract between the City of Lucas and 
Collin County, Texas, for Fire Protection Services in Unincorporated Fire District. 
[Kitchens] 

The contract shows no big changes to the process, however, the way the payments 
are divided will be a change for the City of Lucas.  Payments will be based on 
population. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the contract between 
the City of Lucas and Collin County, Texas, for Fire Protection Services in 
Unincorporated Fire District with the amended map.  Councilmember 
Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

17) Adjournment. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 20 of 20 
City Council Minutes 
August 15, 2013 

MOTION:   Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to adjourn the meeting at 
9:13 p.m.  Councilmember Jim Olk seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  5-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council on September 
5, 2013. 

 

____________________________ 
Rebecca Mark 

      Mayor 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



Item No. 12 
City Secretary’s use only 

   
 

Council Meeting:    September 5, 2013           Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Joe Hilbourn    
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared: August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Discuss and Consider the approve the landscape plan for Bank of America, Lot 2, 
Block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas 
Road and Angel Parkway intersection. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
Kelly Gomez on behalf of Bank of America in compliance with the City’s Zoning Use 
Chart, and the City’s Code of Ordinances, has filed a landscape plan for approval for a 
parcel located in Lot 2 block A of the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve the landscape plan for Bank of America, Lot 2, Block A of 
the Wal-Mart Lucas Addition, located at the northeast corner of W. Lucas Road and 
Angel Parkway intersection. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Request 





Item No. 13 
City Secretary’s use only 

   
 

Council Meeting:    September 5, 2013           Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Joe Hilbourn    
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared: August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Discuss and Consider the approval of the preliminary plat of a portion of the first phase 
for Inspiration Development, formerly known as the Hanover Property and Huffine 
Development. The parcels are part of the Leroy Farmer Survey ABS 334, Mark Morris 
Survey ABS 561, and Orpha Shelby Survey ABS 799. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to …... 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Request 

















Item No. 14 
City Secretary’s use only 

   
 

Council Meeting:    September 5, 2013           Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Joe Hilbourn    
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared: August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Discuss and Consider the approval of the preliminary plat for Ella Brooke Estates, Lots 
1-3, Block A, being 8.823 acres situated in the James Grayum Survey, Abstract No. 
354, City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Comments forthcoming. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 

 Property currently zoned R-2, conforms to the approved Comprehensive Zoning 
Plan. 

 The plan consists of three lots. 
 The plan consists of a private road with no public street dedications. 

 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to ….. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Request 









Item No. 15 
City Secretary’s use only 

   
 

Council Meeting:    September 5, 2013           Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Joe Hilbourn    
 
Account Code #:     Date Prepared: August 22, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Discuss and Consider the approval of an amendment to the Development Agreement 
between the City of Lucas and Liberty Bank amending Exhibit “B”, the approved site 
plan. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approved as presented, with one stipulation that in lieu of a bridge, they install an over 
flow pond to help alleviate flooding in the area. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The attached development agreement and development plan was originally approved 
on April 19, 2012. The developer is asking to alter the approved site plan to allow for 
single access, on the North and South Phase eliminating the bridge from the plan. The 
first phase would have access from Stinson Road; the second phase would have 
access through Stinson Highlands Phase 2 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to ….. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda 

Request 































Item No. 16 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Jim Kitchens    
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:  N/A    Date Prepared:  August 5, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $   N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider Fire Department Staff work schedule plan. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to .... 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 17 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor: Jim Kitchens    
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:  N/A    Date Prepared:  August 5, 2013  
 
Budgeted Amount: $   N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of a contract between the City of Lucas and 
Questcare Medical Services, P.A. for medical supervision of EMS activities and 
authorize the City Manager to execute said contract. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve the contract between the City of Lucas and Questcare 
Medical Services, P.A. for medical supervision of EMS activities and authorize the City 
Manager to execute said contract. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



 

AGREEMENT FOR EMS MEDICAL CONTROL – Page 1 

AGREEMENT FOR EMS MEDICAL CONTROL 
 
 

This Agreement for EMS Medical Control (this “Agreement”) is entered as of September 05, 
2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Lucas Fire and Rescue, Lucas, Texas (“Client”), and 
Questcare Medical Services, P.A. (“Questcare”) (Client and Questcare being referred to collectively as 
the “parties”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Client desires to obtain medical supervision of its emergency medical service 
(“EMS”) activities in the form of a Medical Director, as required by Texas law, and oversight of Client’s 
education of its emergency medical technicians and paramedics (the “Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Questcare desires to provide the Services upon the terms and conditions set forth 
below; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
herein, Client and Questcare agree as follows: 
 
 1. Medical Director.  Questcare shall appoint a physician employed by or under contract 
with Questcare to serve as medical director for Client (the “Medical Director”).  The Medical Director 
may appoint other physician employees or contractors of Questcare to conduct all or part of the activities 
required of the Medical Director under this Agreement.  As of the Effective Date, the Medical Director 
will be Scott Corcoran, MD.  Questcare will have the right, however, to appoint any other physician as the 
Medical Director in place of Dr. Corcoran in the event Dr. Corcoran leaves Questcare’s employment or 
otherwise ceases to serve as Medical Director.  Client also consents to performance of assistant medical 
director services by Mark Gamber, DO, and William T. Hartman, DO.  The physician(s) at any time 
serving as the Medical Director must be reasonably acceptable to Client and must meet the following 
requirements: 
 
  a. Maintain a current license to practice medicine in Texas; 
  

 b. Maintain current board certification in Emergency Medicine with the American 
Board of Emergency Medicine, the American Board of Medical Specialties, the American 
Osteopathic Association, or the American Association of Physician Specialists; 

 
c. Provide current evidence of credentials, curriculum vitae, and continuing 

education activities; 
 

d. Provide documentation of current medical malpractice insurance with specific 
coverage for emergency medical services activities; 

 
  e. Provide current DEA license for controlled medications; and 
 

f. Maintain active involvement in the provision of emergency medical services in 
the North Texas vicinity. 

 
2. Questcare’s Obligations.  In addition to complying with Section 1, Questcare, through 

the Medical Director and/or his assistants, shall provide the Services, which will consist of the following 
services: 
 



 

AGREEMENT FOR EMS MEDICAL CONTROL – Page 2 

a. Provide on-line medical control for Client’s emergency medical technicians, 
paramedics, and related staff (“Client Staff”) through a base station located at the emergency 
department at The Medical Center of McKinney (the “Hospital”).  As set forth in Section 14, this 
Agreement is expressly subject to and conditioned upon Questcare’s ability to secure the 
Hospital’s consent to the operation of the base station at the Hospital.  This on-line control will 
include all on-line control functions and duties that Texas law requires an EMS medical director 
to provide.  Client will pay the cost of all equipment Questcare determines is required for the 
operation of the base station, and such payment, at such time or times as Questcare may 
reasonably specify, shall be a condition to Questcare’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
b. Provide off-line medical control, which will include all off-line control functions 

and duties that Texas law requires an EMS medical director to provide. 
 

c. Supervise the continuing education program Client provides for Client Staff and 
advise Client about what changes, if any, in such education program are necessary from time to 
time to cause the program to be sufficient to permit all Client Staff to meet all state licensing, 
certification, or other requirements for continuing education.  

 
 3. Compensation.  For performing the Services, Client shall pay Questcare the 

following compensation:   
 
a. $150.00 per hour of services document by the Medical Director or an assistant 

medical director, payable within 15 days after the date of Questcare’s invoice for the services.  
Beginning on the Effective Date, Questcare will provide up to three hours of service per month.  
Beginning October 1, 2013, Questcare will provide up to six hours of service per month.  
Beginning when Client places a second ambulance into service, Questcare will perform up to 12 
hours of service per month; and 
 

b. $50.00 annually, payable on or before the Effective Date and each anniversary of 
the Effective Date, to cover the cost of Questcare’s medical malpractice insurance coverage with 
respect to this Agreement. 

 
 4. Term; Termination.   
 

a. Term.  The term of this Agreement will commence at 12:01 a.m. on the 
Effective Date and continue through 12:00 a.m. one year thereafter, subject to subsection b 
below.  After such term, this Agreement will automatically renew for additional consecutive one-
year periods, unless either party gives the other party at least 30 days’ notice of nonrenewal prior 
to the expiration of either the original term or any such additional term; provided that an 
automatic renewal will not occur unless the amount specified in Section 3.b has been paid prior to 
commencement of the renewal term. 

 
b. Termination.  Notwithstanding Section 4.a above, either party may terminate 

this Agreement by giving the other party 30 days’ written notice of termination.  The 
compensation provided in Section 3.a (but not the amount described in Section 3.b) will be 
prorated accordingly in the event of such a termination. 

 
 5. Insurance.  Questcare shall maintain in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement medical professional liability insurance with coverage limits that are standard for the type of 
services in question in the applicable geographic area.  Such insurance shall expressly cover the activities 
of the Medical Director in his role as Medical Director. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR EMS MEDICAL CONTROL – Page 3 

 
 6. Independent Contractors.  The parties’ relationship to each other at all times and for all 
purposes under this Agreement shall be that of independent contractors.  Neither party will be considered 
to be an agent or employee of the other party. 
 
 7. No Waiver.  The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement will 
not constitute a waiver by it of that or any other provision. 
 
 8. Default by Questcare.  Notwithstanding Section 4, Client may terminate this Agreement 
immediately by giving Questcare written notice of termination if Questcare defaults in the performance of 
the Services and fails to cure the default within 30 days following its receipt of written notice from Client 
specifying the nature of the default . 
 
 9. Governing Law.  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND 
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, OTHER THAN 
ITS RULES CONCERNING CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
 10. Notices.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement will be sufficient if 
delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by hand-delivery to the party intended to receive 
same at the following address for such party or at such other address as such party may hereafter provide 
in accordance with this section: 
 
If to Client:      If to Questcare: 
 
Lucas Fire and Rescue     Questcare Medical Services, P.A. 
665 Country Club Road     12221 Merit Drive, Suite 1610 
Lucas, Texas  75002     Dallas, Texas  75251 
Attention:  Chief Jim Kitchens    Attention:  Legal Department 
 
 11. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement, and the parties’ respective rights and obligations shall be construed and 
enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the provision declared to be illegal or invalid. 
 
 12. No Assignment.  Neither party may assign or transfer its rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.  Questcare may not enter any subcontracts 
for the performance of the Services without Client’s prior written consent, except that Questcare may 
subcontract its obligations to the Medical Director. 
 
 13. No Influence Upon Referrals.  It is not the intention of either party to this Agreement 
that any remuneration, benefit, or privilege provided for under this Agreement influence or in any way be 
based upon the referral or recommended referral by either party of patients to the other party or its 
affiliated providers, if any, or the purchasing, leasing, or ordering of any services other than the specific 
services described in this Agreement.  Any payments or other consideration specified in this Agreement 
are consistent with what the parties reasonably believe to be the fair market value of the services provided 
in consideration of such payments or other consideration. 
 
 14. Subject to Hospital Approval.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
the effectiveness of this Agreement is dependent upon the parties’ receipt of approval by the Hospital of 
the use of the Hospital’s emergency department as the location for the base station referred to in Section 
2.a.  In the absence of such approval, this Agreement shall not take effect. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR EMS MEDICAL CONTROL – Page 4 

 
 15. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous written or verbal 
agreements regarding such subject matter.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument 
signed by both of the parties.  This Agreement shall bind and shall inure to the benefit of the parties’ 
respective successors and permitted assigns.  Each party represents that the individual signing this 
Agreement on its behalf is the duly-authorized representative of such party with the power to bind the 
party to this Agreement. 
 
 SIGNED as of the Effective Date. 
 
QUESTCARE MEDICAL SERVICES, P.A.  LUCAS FIRE AND RESCUE 
 
 
By:        By:        
 John H. Myers, MD     Jeff Jenkins 
 President      City Manager 
 
 
 



Item No. 18 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

The City Council pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code may 
convene into Executive Session to conduct the annual review of the City Secretary. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 19 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Take any action as necessary from the Executive Session. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to…. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 20 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  September 5, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $  N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Adjournment. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to adjourn the meeting at    p.m. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 


	00 cc-20130905 rg agenda
	00 Attendance sheet
	00 Council meeting memo September 5, 2013
	01 citizens' input cs
	02 community interest cs
	03 lease of LVFD equipment cs
	03 Comparison of Lease Agreements
	03 Exhibit A for financing of LVFD equipment
	03 Exhibit B for leasing of LVFD equipment
	04 schematic design LVFD cs
	04 Potential Cost Reduction Items 2013-08-28
	04 Copy of Estimate of Owners Cost Fire Station
	04 Lucas Central Fire Station - WHJ 2013-09-05 pdf
	05 tax rate public hearing cs
	05 Notice of Public Hearing on Tax for Lucas
	06 budget public hearing cs
	06 Proposed Budget FY 2013 2014 20130905
	City of Lucas Cover Page 1 FY 13-14
	FY 13-14 Cover Page 2 Budget
	Org Chart - Lucas012412
	Table of Contents FY 13-14
	FY 2013-2014 City of Lucas Budget Proposed Budget 8-29-13

	06 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING Budget
	07 3R property annexation cs
	07 Exhibit A 3R
	07 Exhibit B 3R
	07 3R annexation notice of 2nd public hearing
	08 stevens property cs
	08 Exhibit A Stevens
	08 Exhibit B Stevens
	08 Stevens annexation notice of 2nd public hearing
	09 stinson highlands II cs
	09 Stinson Highlands II Voluntary Annexation Exhibit A Exhibit B cs
	09 Stinson Highlands II annexation 2nd public hearing notice
	10 Bank of America site plan cs
	10 site plan for Bank of America
	10 Bank of America Site Plan Public Notice
	11 minutes approval cs
	11 cc-20130815 council minutes
	12 Bank of America landscape plan cs
	12 landscape Bank of America
	13 inspiration preliminary plat cs
	13 Inspiration preliminary plat
	14 ella brooke preliminary plat cs
	14 ella brooke metes and bounds
	14 Ella Brooke Estates Preliminary Plat
	15 amend Liberty Bank Development Agreement cs
	15 Approved Development Agreement Between City of Lucas & Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company
	Approved Development Agreement Between City of Lucas & Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company
	Approved Exhibit B Development Agreement Between t City of Lucas & Liberty Bankers Life Insurance Company

	15 Revised Exhibit B for Liberty Bank development plan 87 acres stinson
	16 fire department staffing cs
	17 ems contract cs
	17 ems contract for lucas with Questcare Medical Services
	18 exec session cs
	19 action from exec session cs
	20 adjournment cs



